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NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE MCLENNAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the McLennan County Commissioners Court will conduct its regular scheduled meeting on Tuesday, 
May 5, 2020 at 9:00 o’clock a.m. and act on the items on the following agenda 
 
No physical meeting open to the public will be held.  A temporary suspension of portions of the open meetings act to allow telephone 
or video conference public meetings has been granted by Governor Greg Abbott pursuant to Executive Order No. GA-08.  These actions 
are being taken to mitigate the spread of Covid-19 by avoiding meetings that bring people into a group setting and in accordance with 
Section 418.016 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
The opportunity to view and hear the meeting as well as the process if one wishes to address the Commissioners Court is available at:  
https://tx-mclennancounty.civicplus.com/1121/Commissioners-Court-Online-Meeting-Infor 
 

AGENDA 

A. Proof of Posting of Notice 
 

B. Moment of Silence / Invocation and Pledge 
 

C. Public Comments  
 

D. Proclamations / Resolutions: 
 

   1. Proclamation Recognizing and Honoring National Correctional Officers and Employees Week 
 

E. Consent Agenda: 
 

   1. Approval of Minutes of Prior Meeting(s); Recording into the Court Minutes of Previously Approved 
Documents; Recordation of Items Not Requiring Court Action 

 

      a. Recording of Texas Department of State Health Services Notification of 2020 Tobacco Settlement Distribution 
 

      b. Recording of City of Waco Intent to Annex and Public Hearing Notices 
 

   2. Financial Obligations of McLennan County: 
 

      a. Authorization for County Treasurer to Pay County Checks / Wire / Electronic Transfers Issued Since the Last 
Authorization 

 

   3. Human Resources / Salary Matters (Payroll Status Forms or Changes): 
 

      a. Constable, Precinct 1 
 

      b. Maintenance of Equipment: 
 

         1) Acceptance of Resignation of Director 
 

         2) Discussion and/or Action regarding Replacement of Director including, but not limited to, Interim 
Management/Director, Replacement Process, Job Description Changes or Updates, and related matters 

 

   4. Authorization / Ratification of RFP’s, RFQ’s, and Bids Advertisements; Publications; Public / Legal Notices 
 

   5. Travel and Education Requests: 
 

   
6. Recording of Educational Certificates; Recording of Department Head Affidavits; Recording of Departmental Reports; 

Acceptance or Approval of Official Bonds, Conflict Statements, or Other Such Items Required to be Submitted to the 
Court by Public Officials:  

 

      a. Tax Assessor / Collector: Recording of Detailed Deposit Distribution Report, March 2020 
 

      b. Recording of Hotel Occupancy Tax Reports,  September 2019 - March 2020 
 

      c. Recording of Short-Term Motor Vehicle Rental Tax Reports, September 2019 - February 2020 
 

      d. McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District: Recording of FY 19 Annual Financial Report / Statements 
 

   7. Burn Ban Approval, Extension, or Termination 
 

   8. Authorization of McLennan County Credit Card Purchases 
 

   9. McLennan County Subdivision Regulations: 
 

      a. Approval of Final Plat of "Foster Branch Estates Addition, Lots 1-22" to McLennan County, Precinct 1 
 

F. Budget, Budget Amendments/Transfers/Changes, Additional Revenue Certifications, Expenditure Requests: 
 

   1. Regarding FY 20 Budget: 
 

      a. Justice of the Peace, Precinct 3 (Fund 140) 
 

      b. County Sheriff 
 

https://us-west-2.protection.sophos.com/?d=civicplus.com&u=aHR0cHM6Ly90eC1tY2xlbm5hbmNvdW50eS5jaXZpY3BsdXMuY29tLzExMjEvQ29tbWlzc2lvbmVycy1Db3VydC1PbmxpbmUtTWVldGluZy1JbmZvcg==&e=Y2hhcXVpbnRhLmZpc2hlckBjby5tY2xlbm5hbi50eC51cw==&h=4934f5fe6df04a08826a59ac0d4e5438&t=MDZrY1YyQUsrcTNZWE5OWUswbGtvdllVYmwvdHBORE4zTHJrSk54eXJxOD0=


Page 2 of 4 
 

      c. Health Services 
 

      d. Tax Office 
 

      e. 2019 Certificates of Obligation / Permanent Improvement Fund (Fund 419) 
 

      f. Constable, Precinct 5 
 

      g. Authorization of Texas Association of Counties Claim Deductible Invoices: 
 

         1) Regarding Invoice # NRDD-0005850 
 

         2) Regarding Invoice # NRDD-0005817 
 

         3) Regarding Invoice # NRDD-0005940 
 

         4) Regarding Invoice # NRDD-0005959 
 

   2. Regarding the FY 21 Budget: 
 

      a. Discussion and/or Action regarding Matters relative to the FY 21 Budget / 2019 Tax Rate, including, but not limited to, 
Budget Policies, Priorities, Timelines, Updates from the County Auditor and/or Budget Work Sessions, as needed 

 

G. Bids, RFP’s, RFQ’s, Quotations for Goods and Services:  
 

   1. Authorization of Work-Order Inspection Proposal: ThyssenKrupp Elevator Corporation (re: Annual Safety Test) 
 

   2. Authorization of Renewal for Bid 15-017: Printing McLennan County Tax Statements (Peregrine Solutions) 
 

   3. Authorization of Recommendation for Bid 20-013: ADA Renovations at Extraco Events Center 
 

   4. Authorization of Recommendation for Bid 20-015: Road & Bridge, Precinct 2 Office Building 
 

H. Contracts, Interlocal Agreements, and Memorandums of Understanding; Purchase, Lease, or Acquisition of Goods, 
Equipment or Services, including any Financing Thereof: 

 

   1. Authorization of Eleventh Memorandum of Agreement Addendum with Baylor University (re: DWI/Drug Court Program 
Cooperation) 

 

   2. Ratification of Service Agreement with DemandStar Corporation (re: Internet-Based Electronic Bid Information System) 
 

   3. Authorization of Agreements and related Documents with CTWP (re: Copier for County Clerk's Office) 
 

   4. Ratification of Lexis Advance Subscription Amendment with Library Patron Access with LexisNexis (re: Law Library) 
 

   5. Regarding the United States Marshals Service Agreements: 
 

      a. Authorization of Modification of Intergovernmental Agreement regarding Special VTC Language for Agreement No. 80-
10-0033 (re: Jack Harwell Detention Center) 

 

      b. Authorization of Modification of Intergovernmental Agreement regarding Special VTC Language for Agreement No. 80-
99-0119 (re: Highway 6 Jail) 

 

I. Waco-McLennan County Economic Development Corporation (WMCEDC): Authorization of Agreements; Consulting 
Services; Proposed Projects / Program Project Agreements / Amendments / Pay Applications 

 

   1. Regarding the Program Project Agreement and First-Amended Agreement with Swan Products, LLC: Authorization of 
Payment Request # 1 

 

J. Capital Improvement, Repair, Maintenance Projects and Construction Projects: 
 

   1. Regarding the McLennan County Roof Program (RFP # 20-006) /Agreement with Clark Roofing: Authorization of Invoice for 
the Sheriff's Office Roof 

 

   2. Regarding the Renovation of Building for IV-D Court (Bid # 19-017) / Agreement with K4 Construction, LLC: 
 

      a. Authorization of Payment Application # 9 
 

      b. Authorization of Payment Application #10 
 

K. Real Estate, Right of Way, and Easements: 
 

L. Grants / Grant Proposals: 
 

   1. Regarding the Texas Indigent Defense Commission - Indigent Defense Improvement Grant Program: Authorization of 
Submission of Grant Application and related Documents / Agreements 

 

   2. Regarding the Homeland Security Grants Division - FY 2020 Border Prosecution Unit Grant: Authorization of Grant 
Application Submission 

 

   3. Regarding the Texas Community Block Grant (TxCDBG): Ratification of Request for Payment (re: Water and Sewer 
Improvements in the Unincorporated Community of Elm Mott / Contract No. 7219270) 
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   4. Regarding the Criminal Justice Division - Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding (CESF) Program: Discussion and/or 
Action on Grant Application Submission 

 

M. Department/Office-Specific Requests, Presentations or Items for Discussion and Possible Action (To the Extent Not 
Addressed Above): 

 

   1. County Sheriff: Authorization of Request for Purchase of Duty Weapon Upon Retirement of Peace Officer (ref: Government 
Code 614.051) 

 

   2. Justice of the Peace, Precinct 3: Authorization of Mitel Phone Installation Request 
 

N. Additional Items for Discussion and Potential Action: 
 

   

1. Discussion and/or Action on Matters Regarding Covid-19 including but not limited to Staffing, Emergency Appropriations, 
Precautions and Plans, Restrictions to Prevent the Spread of COVID-19, Personnel Compensation and Benefit Matters, Health 
and Safety Procurements, Technology Procurements for Criminal Justice System to Allow for Operations to Continue Safely, 
Technology Procurements to Allow for Remote Meeting Participation, Reports on Progression of COVID-19, and related 
matters 

 

   2. Selection / Designation of Public Members of the Salary Grievance Committee regarding the FY 21 Budget 
 

   3. Discussion and/or Action regarding an Order Authorizing Memorial Day Fireworks Sales 
 

   4. Discussion and/or Action regarding a Temporary Pauper Burial Policy relative to COVID-19 Decedents 
 

   5. Discussion and/or Action regarding Toll-Free Number and related Letter of Authorization with MessageMedia (re: Jury Short 
Message Service (SMS) for the District Clerk) 

 

   6. Discussion and/or Action regarding the 2020 Texas Association of Counties (TAC) Risk Management Pool Employee Safety 
Equipment Program 

 

   7. Consideration and Action on Approving Potential Jurors to be Empanelled at the Convention Center due to COVID-19 Social 
Distancing 

 

O. Americans with Disabilities Compliance Project: 
 

P. McLennan County Venue Project: Authorizations for Phase I, II and/or Phase III, including but not limited to: 
 

   1. Regarding the Architectural Services Agreement with Populous: Authorization of Professional Services Invoices, Pay 
Applications, Schematic Design Documents; Acceptance of Reports, Updates, related matters:  

 

      a. Authorization of Professional Services Invoice (re: March - April Services / Invoice No. 0069583) 
 

   
2. Regarding the Construction Manager at Risk Agreement with John W. Erwin General Contractor, Inc.: Authorization of 

Applications and Certificates for Payment, Agreement Addendums, Design Documents; Acceptance of Reports, Updates, 
related matters:  

 

      a. Authorization of Application and Certificate for Payment No. 15 
 

   3. Regarding Engineering Services Agreement with Walker Partners: Authorization of Professional Services Invoices, 
Engineering / Surveying Services Invoices, related matters: 

 

      a. Authorization of Engineering / Surveying Services Invoice (re: March Services / Invoice No. 0103140.01-18379) 
 

   4. Regarding the Professional Services Agreement and related Construction Materials Testing Proposal with Langerman Foster 
Engineering Company: Authorization of Invoice # 11691 

 

Q. McLennan County Radio Tower Project / Multiple Site Expansion to Existing Simulcast Communication System: 
 

R. Work Session Items (unless otherwise identified above, no action will be taken, but these matters will be discussed): 
 

   

1. Discussion regarding Criminal Justice Issues: Updates on the Electronic Monitoring Program; Coordinating the McLennan 
County Criminal Justice System / Criminal Justice Process / Veterans & Mental Health Courts;  Courthouse Security; Public 
Nuisance Reporting & Enforcement Process; Reintegration Programs; Updates from the Associate Judge; Jack Harwell 
Detention Facility, related matters 

 

   2. Discussion regarding Capital Expenditures: including Time Schedule for Capital Outlay / Recommendations from the Finance 
Committee on the Spending Policy / Equipment Financing, related matters 

 

   

3. Discussion regarding County Property: including Space Availability & Utilization of County Buildings/Law Library, 
Utilization Planning,  Consultant, Joint Facilities Master Plan or Study; Space and Office Allocations; Tradinghouse Lake/Park; 
Updates regarding ADA Capital Improvements;  Updates regarding Road Projects including Surrey Ridge Road, Speegleville 
Road, and/or Chapel Road; County Off-System Bridge Repair/Maintenance, Judicial Center Feasibility Study, File Storage at 
Downtown Jail, Original Themis Statue, Clock / Clock Tower Project, related matters 

 

   4. Discussion regarding Rural Transit District: including Rural/Public Transportation Updates / Reports, related matter 
 

   5. Discussion regarding Radio Interoperability: including Tower Sites, Trunking Systems and System Upgrades 
 

   6. Discussion regarding Jail Magistration  
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   7. Discussion regarding Vote Centers 
 

   8. Discussion regarding the Transporting of Juveniles for Class "C" Truancy Citations by Constables 
 

S. Executive/Closed Session 
 

   

1. Section 551.071 of the Government Code (V.C.T.A.): An executive/closed session will be held so that the Commissioners 
Court can seek and receive legal advice from its attorneys regarding pending or threatened litigation, settlement offers, claims, 
or other matters for which the attorneys' duties to their client under the Texas State Bar Disciplinary Rules of Professional 
Conduct Conflicts with the Open Meetings Act (Ch.551, Gov. Code) if necessary for a subject contained on this agenda, and 
advice dealing with pending litigation, administrative claims or notices, and legal effects, liabilities, and legal options including 
but not limited to claims arising from Opioid Litigation, Civil Rights Cases, Tort Claims, or Other Pending or Threatening 
Litigation 

 

   

2. Section 551.072 of the Government Code (V.C.T.A.): Regarding Real Property, including, but not limited to: (1) Right-Of-
Way Acquisitions re: Expansion / Repair Project/s; and/or (2) Real Estate Purchase / Sale / Transfer / Trade / Offers to Purchase, 
Acquisition / Value / Donations of Real Property / Leases relative to Real Property, including, but not limited to, Potential 
Properties for Use by County / Public Facilities & Valuation of Current Property for Trade or Sale 

 

   

3. Section 551.074 of the Government Code (V.C.T.A.): Regarding Personnel Matters including but not limited to: Personnel 
Review / Evaluation of Commissioners Court Appointed Department Heads; Employment, Appointment, Termination, Hearing 
Grievances Against Employees or Public Officials; Incentive Pay; Deliberations regarding Assigning Interim Director for 
Maintenance of Equipment; Personnel Matters Identified in any Open Session Item if Necessary, and related matters 

 

   4. Section 551.076 of the Government Code (V.C.T.A.): Deliberations regarding Security Devices or Security Audits 
 

   
5. Section 551.087 of the Government Code (V.C.T.A.): Regarding Economic Development Negotiations including, but not 

limited to (1) Discussion of Commercial / Financial Information Received from a Business Prospect/s; (2) Pending Negotiations 
/ Potential Prospects and Projects; and/or (3) Discussion re: Offers of Financial or Other Incentives to Business Prospect/s 

 

T. Adjourn 
 

Signed this 30th day of April, 2020 
 
 

Scott M. Felton – Original Signed 
SCOTT M. FELTON, County Judge 

 
 
STATE OF TEXAS * 
COUNTY OF McLENNAN * 
 
I, J.A. “ANDY” HARWELL, County Clerk, and the Ex-Officio Clerk to the Commissioners Court, hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing is a true and correct copy of a NOTICE OF MEETING posted by me at the Courthouse door in Waco, McLennan County, 
Texas, where notices are customarily posted this 30th day of April, 2020.   
 
Witness my hand and seal of office at Waco, McLennan County, Texas the 30th day of April, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 
  
 
                        J. A. "ANDY" HARWELL, County Clerk 
(SEAL)           McLennan County, Texas 
 
  
                        BY: Myrece’tez Gowan-Perkins (Deputy)       
 
 
Notice: Persons with disabilities in need of auxiliary aide or services may contact the County Judge’s Office, (254) 757-5049, prior to the 
meeting date 
 



STATE OF TEXAS 
 PROCLAMATION 

COUNTY OF MCLENNAN             

A PROCLAMATION OF THE MCLENNAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT 
RECOGNIZING AND HONORING NATIONAL CORRECTIONAL OFFICERS AND 

EMPLOYEES WEEK 

WHEREAS, in 1984, President Ronald Reagan signed Proclamation 5187 creating “National Correctional 
Officers’ Week”; and 

WHEREAS, the first full week of May is recognized as National Correctional Officers’ Week to honor the 
work of correctional officers and correctional personnel nationwide; and 

WHEREAS, in 1996, Congress officially changed the name of the week to National Correctional Officers 
and Employees Week; and   

WHEREAS, the names of 720 correctional officers are engraved on the National Law Enforcement Officers 
Memorial.  These courageous heroes are forever remembered, and their light continues to shine through their 
memory, and through the selfless men and women who continue to serve each day; and 

WHEREAS, historically, correctional officers have been viewed as “guards,” occupying isolated and 
misunderstood positions in prisons and jails. The duties of these officers have become increasingly complex 
and demanding; and  

WHEREAS, the professionalism, dedication and courage exhibited by these officers throughout the 
performance of these demanding roles deserve the utmost respect; and  

WHEREAS, it is important that we honor the daily contributions and accomplishments of these men and 
women who are crucial to the operation of correctional facilities; and 

THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED, the McLennan County Commissioners Court recognizes and honors 
the officers of all correctional facilities for their devotion, bravery and commitment.   

BE IT FURTHER PROCLAIMED, a copy of this Proclamation be made a permanent part of the minutes of 
the Commissioners Court. 

WITNESSED OUR HAND AND SEAL this 5th day of May, 2020. 

_______________________________ 
SCOTT M. FELTON, County Judge 

__________________________________ ___________________________________ 
KELLY SNELL, Commissioner, Pct. 1         PATRICIA MILLER, Commissioner, Pct. 2 

__________________________________ ___________________________________ 
WILL JONES, Commissioner, Pct. 3  BEN PERRY, Commissioner, Pct. 4 

Attest:  
J.A. “Andy” HARWELL, County Clerk 
McLennan County, Texas 

_________________________________ 
By: Deputy County Clerk  
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From: DSHS Tobacco (DSHSTobacco@dshs.texas.gov) <DSHSTobacco@dshs.texas.gov> 
Sent: Tuesday, April 21, 2020 12:14 PM 
To: DSHS Tobacco <DSHSTobacco@dshs.texas.gov> 
Cc: McHard,Elaine Q (DSHS) <Elaine.McHard@dshs.texas.gov> 
Subject: 2020 Pro Rata Share of the Tobacco Settlement Distribution Program 

Good Afternoon, 

Thank you for participating in the Tobacco Settlement Distribution 
Program.  The 2020 pro rata share of tobacco settlement proceeds have 
been distributed based upon the expenditure statements submitted.  The 
Texas Department of State Health Services certified the distribution amounts 
to the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts, who is working to transmit 
payment to your jurisdiction.  

Due to COVID 19, our office is sending this email instead of the customary 
payment statement mailout to ensure timely notification of the 
distribution.  We appreciate your patience as we modify this year’s 
notification process.   

The 2020 pro rata share of tobacco settlement proceeds distribution amount 
was $73,831,824.00 to 294 jurisdictions.  Attached is the list of payments to 
be distributed.  This information is also available on the Tobacco website at 
https://www.dshs.texas.gov/tobaccosettlement/pay2020.aspx.   

Any questions concerning these payments, or the program, may be directed 
to Joy Counce at DSHSTobacco@dshs.texas.gov or 512-776-2591.  

Have a wonderful day and stay safe, 

Joy  

Joy Counce  
Funds Coordination and Management Branch 
Tobacco Settlement Distribution Program  
DSHSTobacco@dshs.texas.gov  
512-776-2591 (office)
512-776-7774 (fax)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Board of Managers 
McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District 
Woodway, Texas 

Report on the Financial Statements 

PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, L.L.P. 
401 West State Highway 6 

Waco, Texas 76710 

254.772.4901 pbhcpa.com 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of McLennan 
County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District (the "District"), as of and for the year ended September 30, 
2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The District's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

OFFICE LOCATIONS 
TEXAS ! Waco i Temple , Hillsboro i Houston 
NEW MEXICO i Albuquerque 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities of the District, as of September 30, 2019, and the 
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis and the pension and OPEB information be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency 
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 31, 
2020, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

f oJ:tJJu f3~ f 7-/Ji L.L.P. 
I I 

Waco, Texas 
January 31, 2020 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District's management's discussion and analysis of its financial 
condition and operating results provides an overview of its financial activity and assists the reader in 
understanding noteworthy financial issues for the year ending September 30, 2019. This analysis has been 
prepared by management of McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District and it is intended to be 
read with the financial statements and related notes that follow this section. 

McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District (the District) was formed and confirmed by the voters 
of McLennan County on August 8, 1987, to allow for the creation of an emergency communication district and 
to authorize a 9-1-1 emergency service fee to be charged by the District. 

Financial Highlights 

• The District's net position at September 30, 2019 was $7,579,170. 

• The District's net position increased $435,144 during the year. 

Overview of Financial Statements 

The District qualifies as a special-purpose government engaged in a business-type activity and the financial 
statements are prepared on that basis. The District has prepared the financial statements using the economic 
resources focus model and the accrual basis of accounting. This model provides information about the long­
term effects of the decision, primarily by including the cost of consuming capital assets used in providing 
services. 

The financial statement format consists of three primary statements, the Statement of Net Position, the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of Cash Flows. A brief 
description of each statement, which explains the differences in the information provided, follows. 

Statement of Net Position 

The Statement of Net Position includes all assets and deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources of the District using the accrual basis of accounting. The District's net position is one 
indicator of its financial health. Over time, increases or decreases in net position are indicators of the 
improvement or erosion of the District's financial health when considered with other non-financial factors. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents revenues earned and the 
expenses incurred during the year. Activities performed by the District are classified as either operating or 
non-operating activities. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

The Statement of Cash Flows presents information related to cash inflows and outflows summarized by 
operating, capital financing, non-capital financing, and investing activities. This statement helps users assess 
the District's ability to generate cash flows to meet its obligations as they come due. 
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Condensed Financial Information 

The following summary shows a condensed version of the Statement of Net Position : 

2019 2018 

Current and other assets $ 2,901,042 $ 5,122,021 
Capital assets 4,667,332 2,200,575 

Total assets 7,568,374 7,322,596 

Deferred outflow of resources 143,822 57 482 

Current liabilities 96,661 187,306 
Long-term liabilities 30 ,114 38,180 

Total liabilities 126,775 225,486 

Total deferred inflows of resources 6,252 10,567 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 4,667,332 2,200,575 
Unrestricted 2,911 ,837 4 ,943,450 

Total net position $ 7,579,169 $ 7 ,144,025 

The following shows a condensed version of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net 
Position: 

Operating revenues 
Operating expenses 
Operating income 

Non-operating revenue/(expense) 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning 

Prior period adjustment 

Net position, ending 

2019 2018 

$ 1,818,740 $ 1,778,594 
1,463JOO 1,501 ,673 

355,040 276,921 

80,104 71 799 

$ 435,144 $ 348 ,720 

7 ,144,025 6 ,802,465 

7,160) 

$ 7,579,169 $ 7,144,025 

Operating expenses were slightly lower than the previous fiscal year. Operating revenue from landline and 
wireless devices reflected an increase of $40,146, an indicator of the increasingly developing mobile society 
coupled with the population growth of the District's service area of McLennan County. 

Non-operating revenue generally consists primarily of interest generated in the District's investment accounts. 
In fiscal year 2019, the District's investments reflected the growth of the economy as the financial pools 
increased their respective rates of return, resulting in relatively substantial growth in the non-operating 
revenue. 
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Description of Significant Capital Asset Activity 

Capital assets increased $2,466,757, or 112% in 2019. The increase was mainly caused by additions to 
Construction in Progress related to the costs associated with the new McLennan County Backup 9-1-1 Facility. 
The additions to CIP were offset by annual depreciation costs. 

Additional information on capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 

Currently Known Facts, Decisions, or Conditions 

The District's fee rates for fiscal year 2020 were set during the budget process and will remain the same 
throughout the next budget year. 

District leadership remained strong throughout fiscal year 2019 as the Board of Managers continued to provide 
committed, experienced, and knowledgeable guidance. Staff boosted its professional development by 
continued participation in qualified organizations, upholding a high level of standard in its duties and 
responsibilities, and maintaining certifications by taking advantage of continuing education opportunities when 
presented. 

Request for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the finances of the McLennan County 9-1-1 
Emergency Assistance District, comply with finance-related laws and regulations, and demonstrate the 
District's commitment to public accountability. If you have questions about this report or would like to request 
additional information, contact the McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District at 107 Burnett Ct., 
Woodway, Texas 76712 . 
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McLENNAN COUNTY 9-1-1 
EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 
Net pension asset 

Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred outflows related to pension 
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Noncurrent liabilities: 
Due within one year: 

Compensated absences 
Due in more than one year: 

Compensated absences 
Total OPEB liability 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred inflows related to pension 
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Un restricted 

Total net position 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 6 

$ 2,804,481 
43,587 
21,082 

4,667,332 
31,892 

7,568,374 

143,537 
285 

143!822 

17,215 
73,892 

5,554 

22,214 
7,900 

126!775 

4,967 
1!285 

6£252 

4,667,332 
2,911,837 

$ 7,579, 169 
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.... 

McLENNAN COUNTY 9-1-1 
EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Operating revenues: 
User charges 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries and employee benefits 
9-1-1 contracted services 
Depreciation 
Equipment maintenance 
Supplies and utilities 
Insurance 
Training 
Educational materials 
Professional services 
Other operating expenses 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Non-operating revenues: 
Investments earnings 

Total non-operating revenues 

Change in net position 

Net position, beginning of year 

Net position, end of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 7 

$ 1,818,740 
1,818,740 

669,991 
250,356 
109,182 
192,796 
104,937 

24,625 
26,765 
25,191 
22,568 
37,289 

1A 63,700 

355,040 

801104 
801104 

435,144 

7,144,025 

$ 7,579,169 
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McLENNAN COUNTY 9-1-1 
EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE DISTRICT 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Receipts from customers and users 
Payments to employees 
Payments to suppliers and others 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 

Net cash used in capital and related 
financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Investment income 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation of operating income to 
net cash provided by operating activities: 

Operating income 
Adjustment to reconcile operating income to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation 

(Increase) decrease in assets: 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Net pension asset 

Increase {decrease) in liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Compensated absences 
Total OPEB liability 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these financial statements. 8 

$ 1,883,104 
( 643,754) 
( 7851614) 

453L736 

( 2,575,939) 

2,5751939) 

80,104 
80£104 

( 2,042,099) 

4 ,846,580 

$ 2,804,481 

$ 355,040 

109,182 

64,364 
3,923 

19,938 

105,010) 
16,280 

( 9,575) 
( 406) 

$ 453 c736 
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MCLENNAN COUNTY 9-1-1 
EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. Orqanizatjon and Nature of Services Provided 

McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District (the District) was formed and confirmed by 
the voters of McLennan County on August 8, 1987 to allow for the creation of an emergency 
communication district and to authorize a 9-1-1 emergency service fee to be charged by the District. 
The District operates under the provisions of the State of Texas. It operates under a Board of 
Managers Administrator form of government which carries out its responsibilities. 

B. Reporting Entity 

The District is considered to be a primary government according to the definitions in Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus: An 
Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 34. Further, no component units were identified for 
which the District is considered financially accountable under GASB Statement No. 61. 

c. Basic Financial Statements 

The District is a special-purpose government engaged in a single business-type activity; therefore, it 
presents only the financial statements of its enterprise fund. 

D. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. 

The District distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the District's 
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the District is user charges for 
providing emergency communication services. Operating expenses include the cost of services, 
related administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

E. Deposits and Investments 

The District's cash and cash equivalents for purposes of reporting cash flows consist of cash on hand, 
demand deposits, money market funds, certificates of deposit, and governmental investment pools. 

Investments for the District are reported at fair value except for external government investment 
pools (the Pools). The Pools are reported at the net asset value per share (which approximates fair 
value) even though it is calculated using the amortized cost method. 

F. Prepaid Items 

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded 
as prepaid items in the business-type financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as 
expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. 
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G. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include buildings and improvements, equipment, and furniture and fixtures, are 
stated at cost. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of 
more than $500 and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. The costs of normal 
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives 
are not capitalized. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value, which is the price that 
would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential at the acquisition date. 

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related 
assets ranging from 7 to 39 years for buildings and improvements, 5 years for equipment, and 5 
years for furniture and fixtures. 

H. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense) until that time. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position 
that applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until 
that time. 

I. Pensions 

For purposes of measuring the net pension asset or liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the 
Fiduciary Net Position of the Texas County and District Retirement System (TCDRS) and additions 
to/deductions from TCDRS's Fiduciary Net Position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by TCDRS. For this purpose, plan contributions are legally due. Benefit payments and 
refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
reported at fair value. 

J. Other Postemployment Benefits 

The District participates in the Texas County & District Group Term Life Fund (TCDRS GTLF), which is 
an optional single-employer defined benefit life insurance plan that is administered by TCDRS. It 
provides death benefits to active and, if elected, retired employees of participating employers. 
Contribution rates are determined annually for each participating entity as a percentage of that 
District's covered payroll. The death benefit for retirees is considered an other postemployment 
benefit (OPEB). The OPEB program is an unfunded trust because the GTLF trust covers both actives 
and retirees and is not segregated. The Total OPEB Liability of the plan has been determined using 
the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting. This includes 
for purposes of measuring the Total OPEB Liability, deferred inflows and outflows of resources, and 
OPEB expense. Benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms. 
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II. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

The District is authorized by statute to invest in obligations and instruments as defined in the Public 
Funds Investment Act (the Act). The District's investment policy limits the composition of investments to 
(1) U. S. Government or agency securities, (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain money market mutual 
funds, and (4) certain external government investment pools. The District is also required to follow 
specific investment practices prescribed by the Act. 

As of September 30, 2019, the District had the following deposits and Investments: 

Carrying 
Value 

Cash In bank and on hand $ 110,665 
677,281 Non-negotiable certificates of deposit 

External governmental investment pools: 
Texas Local Government Investment Pool (TexPool) 
Texas Short-Term Asset Reserve (TexSTAR) 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

1,483,451 
533,084 

$ 2 ,804,481 

Weighted Average 
Maturity (Days) 

32 
22 

Custodial Credit Risk. The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a 
depository financial institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to 
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The District's policy requires 
all deposits to be fully secured in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Chapter 2257, by either 
surety bonds, letters of credit of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, or by eligible 
securities held by an independent third-party custodian . 

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counter-party, 
the District would not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateralized securities that are in 
the possession of an outside third party. The District's investment policy requires that the purchase of 
investment securities be settled on a delivery basis and that ownership of all securities be perfected in 
the name of the District. 

Interest Rate Risk. In accordance with its investment policy, the District manages its exposure to 
declines in fair value by: (a) structuring the investment portfolio so that investments mature to meet 
cash requirements for ongoing operations, (b) investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term 
securities, (c) diversifying maturities and staggering purchase dates to minimize the impact of market 
movements over time. It is the District's policy not to invest in securities maturing more than eighteen 
months from the date of purchase. 

Credit risk. The District's investment policy limits investments in government investment pools and 
money market mutual funds to those that are rated no lower than AAA or an equivalent rating by at 
least one nationally recognized rating service. As of September 30, 2019, the District's investment in 
TexPool and TexSTAR were rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. 

Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributable to the magnitude 
of a government's investments in the securities of a single issuer. The District's investment policy 
includes an investment objective of seeking diversification to avoid unreasonable risk. However, the 
District has no specific policies that limit the amount it may invest in any one issuer. 

TexPool. TexPool is a public funds investment pool created pursuant to the Interlocal Cooperation Act of 
the State of Texas. The District has delegated the authority to hold legal title to the Pool as custodian 
and to make investment purchases with the District's funds. The State Comptroller of Public Accounts 
exercises oversight responsibility over TexPool. Oversight includes the ability to significantly influence 
operations, designation of management and accountability for fiscal matters. Additionally, the State 
Comptroller has established an advisory board composed of both participants in TexPool and other 
persons who do not have a business relationship with TexPool. The advisory board members review the 
investment policy and management fee structure. TexPool uses amortized cost rather than market value 
to report net position to compute share prices. 
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TexSTAR. TexSTAR is an external governmental investment pool that is co-administered by J.P. Morgan 
Chase and First Southwest Asset Management, Inc. TexSTAR is managed by a five-member board 
comprised of three representatives of eligible governmental entities and one member designated by 
each of the co-administrators. TexSTAR uses amortized cost rather than market value to report net 
position to compute share prices. 

The TexPool and TexSTAR pools each have a redemption notice period of one day and may redeem 
daily. The investment pools' authorities may only impose restrictions on redemptions in the event of a 
general suspension of trading on major securities markets, general banking moratorium or national state 
emergency that affects the pool's liquidity. 

Currently the District does not hold any investments that meet the criteria to be measured using the 
Level 1, 2 or 3 inputs. 

III. CAPITAL ASSETS 

IV. 

capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2019 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Deletions Balance 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 
Land $ 500,000 $ - $ - $ 500,000 
Construction in progress 373,169 2 ,443 ,139 - 2 ,816,308 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 873,169 2,443,139 - 3,316,308 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 1,399,608 - 1,399,608 
Equipment 1,856,101 113,821 - 1,969,922 
Furniture and fixtures 213,521 18,979 - 232,500 

3 ,469,230 132,800 - 3 ,602,030 
Less accumulated depreciation for : 

Buildings and Improvements ( 187,714) ( 39,048) - ( 226,762) 
Equipment ( 1,777,199) ( 55,331) - ( 1,832,530) 
Furniture and fixtures ( 176,911) ( 14,803) - ( 191,714) 

Total accumulated depreciation ( 2 ,141,824) ( 109,182) - ( 2 ,251 ,006) 
Total capital assets, being 

depreciated, net 1 ,327,406 23,618 - 1 ,351 ,024 

Total capital assets, net $ 2 ,200,575 $ 2 ,466,757 $ - $ 4 ,667,332 

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

A summary of long-term debt transactions, including the current portion, for the year ended September 
30, 2019, is as follows: 

Beginning Ending Due Within 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Governmental activities: 
Compensated absences $ 37,343 $ 27,491 $ 37,066 $ 27,768 $-2,554 

Governmental activities 
long-term liabilities $ 37,343 $ 27.491 $ 37,066 $ 27,768 $-2,554 

Compensated Absences 

Compensated absences represent the estimated liability for employees' accrued vacation leave which 
employees are entitled to be paid upon termination. The retirement of this liability is paid from the 
general fund. 
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V. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description. The District participates in a nontraditional defined benefit pension plan in the 
statewide Texas County and District Retirement System ("TCDRS''). The Board of Trustees of TCDRS is 
responsible for the administration of the statewide agent, multiple-employer, public employee retirement 
system consisting of nontraditional defined benefit pension plans. TCDRS issues a publicly available 
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that can be obtained at www.tcdrs.org. 

All full and part-time non-temporary employees participate in the plan, regardless of the number of 
hours they work in a year. Employees in a temporary position are not eligible for membership. 

Benefits Provided. TCDRS provides retirement, disability and survivor benefits for all eligible 
employees. Benefit terms are established by the TCDRS Act. The benefit terms may be amended as of 
January 1, each year, but must remain in conformity with the Act. 

Members can retire at age 60 and above with 8 or more years of service, with 30 years of service 
regardless of age, or when the sum of their age and years of service equals 75 or more. Members are 
vested after eight years of service, but must leave their accumulated contributions in the plan to receive 
any employer-financed benefit. Members who withdraw their personal contributions in a lump sum are 
not entitled to any amounts contributed by their employer. 

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, 
and employer-financed monetary credits. The level of these monetary credits is adopted by the 
governing body of the employer within the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the 
resulting benefits can be expected to be adequately financed by the employer's commitment to 
contribute. By law, employee accounts earn 7%. At retirement, death or disability, the benefit is 
calculated by converting the sum of the employee's accumulated contributions and the employer­
financed monetary credits to a monthly annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS 
Act. 

Employees covered by benefit terms 

At the December 31, 2018 valuation and measurement date, the following employees were covered by 
the benefit terms: 

Inactive employees receiving benefits 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 

Active employees 

1 

5 

7 

Contributions. The contribution rates for employees in TCDRS are either 4%, 5%, 6%, or 7% of 
employee gross earnings, as adopted by the employer's governing body. Participating employers are 
required to contribute at actuarially determined rates to ensure adequate funding for each employer's 
plan. Under the state law governing TCDRS, the contribution rate for each entity Is determined annually 
by the actuary and approved by the TCDRS Board of Trustees. The replacement life entry age actuarial 
cost method is used in determining the contribution rate. The actuarially determined rate is the 
estimated amount necessary to fund benefits in an orderly manner for each participant over his or her 
career so that sufficient funds are accumulated by the time benefit payments begin, with an additional 
amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 

Employees for the District were required to contribute 7% of their annual gross earnings during the fiscal 
year. The contribution rate for the District was 14% in calendar years 2018 and 2019. The District's 
contributions to TCDRS for the year ended September 30, 2019, were $69,383, and were equal to the 
required contributions. 
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Net Pension Liability/(Asset). The District's Net Pension Liability/(Asset) was measured as of 
December 31, 2018, and the Total Pension Liability (TPL) used to calculate the Net Pension 
Liability/(Asset) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The Total Pension Liability in the December 31, 2018, actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions: 

Inflation 
Overall payroll growth 
Long-term investment return 

2 .75% 

0.0% 
8.0% net of investment 
and administrative expenses 

The District has no automatic cost-of-living adjustments ("COLA") and one is not considered to be 
substantively automatic. Therefore, no assumption for future cost-of-living adjustments is included in 
the actuarial valuation. Each year, the District may elect an ad-hoc COLA for its retirees. 

Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the following: 

Depositing members 

Service retirees, beneficiaries 
and non-depositing members 

Disabled retirees 

90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee Mortality Table for 
males and 90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee Mortality 
Table for females, projected with 110% of the MP-2014 
Ultimate scale after 2014. 

130% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for 
males and 110% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality 
Table for females, both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 
Ultimate scale after 2014. 

130% of the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table for 
males and 115% of the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality 
Table for females, both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 
Ultimate scale after 2014 

The actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability as of December 31, 2018, were 
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2013 through December 
31, 2016, except where required to be different by GASB 68. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 8.0%. The pension plan's policy in 
regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the TCDRS Board of 
Trustees. 
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The long-term expected rate of return on TCDRS assets is determined by adding inflation to expected 
long-term real returns, and reflecting expected volatility and correlation. The capital market assumptions 
and information shown below are provided by TCDRS's investment consultant, Cliffwater LLC. The 
numbers shown are based on January 2019 information for a 10-year time horizon. 

Note that the valuation assumption for long-term expected return is re-assessed at a minimum of every 
four years, and is set based on a 30-year time horizon; the most recent analysis was performed in 2017. 

The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates return for each major assets class are 
summarized in the following table: 

Geometric Real 
Rate of Return 

Target (Expected minus 
Asset Class Benchmark Allocation <1> Inflation} <2> 

US Equities Dow Jones U.S. Total Stock Market 
10.50% 5.40% 

Index 
Private Equity Cambridge Associates Global 

Private Equity & Venture Capital 18.00% 8.40% 
Index <3> 

Global Equities MSC! World (net) Index 2.50% 5.70% 
Int'I Equities - Developed Markets MSCI World Ex USA (net) 10.00% 5.40% 
Int'I - Emerging Markets MSC! Emerging Markets Standard 7.00% 5.90% 

(net) Index 
Investment-Grade Bonds Bloomberg Barclays U.S. 

3.00% 1.60% 
Aqqreqate Bond Index 

Strategic Credit FrSE High-Yield Cash-Pay Capped 
12.00% 4.39% Index 

Direct Lending S&P/LSTA Leveraged Loan Index 11.00% 7.95% 

Distressed Debt Cambridge Associates Distressed 
2.00% 7.20% 

Securities Index <4> 
REIT Equities 67% FrSE NAREIT Equity REITs 

Index + 33% S&P Global REIT 2.00% 4.15% 
(net) Index 

Master Limited Partnerships (MLPs) Alerlan MLP Index 3.00% 5.35% 
Private Real Estate Partnerships Cambridge Associates Real Estate 

6.00% 6.30% Index <5> 

Hedge Funds 
Hedge Fund Research, Inc. (HFRI) 13.00% 3.90% 
Fund of Funds Composite Index 

.!QQ.;QQ% 
(IJ Target asset allocation adopted at the April 2019 TCDRS Board meeting. 
(
2J Geometric real rates of return equal the expected return minus the assumed inflation rate of 1.70%, per 
Cliffwater's 2019 capital market assumptions. 
r3J Includes vintage years 2006-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs. 
(
4J Includes vintage years 2005-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs. 

(5J Includes vintage years 2007-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the Total Pension Liability was 8.1 %. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee and employer contributions will be made at 
the rates specified in statute. Based on that assumption, the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive 
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to 
all period of projected benefit payments to determine the Total Pension Liability. 
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 

Increase ~Decrease} 
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension 

Liabllity Net Position Liability /(Asset) 
(a) (b) (a) - (b) 

Balance at December 31, 2017 $ 1,087,968 $ 1,230,453 $( 142,485) 

Changes for the year: 

Service cost 89,177 - 89!177 

Interest on total pension liabillty/(asset) 94,393 - 94,393 

Effect of plan changes C2J 5,295 - 5,295 

Effect of economic/demographic 
gains or losses 2,426 - 2,426 

Effect of assumptions changes or inputs 

Benefit payments ( 24,077) ( 24,077) 

Contributions - employer - 67,577 ( 671577) 

Contributions - members - 33,788 ( 331788) 

Net Investment income - ( 22,060) 221060 

Administrative expense - ( 1,034) 1!034 

Other changesC3J - 2,427 ( 2,427} 

Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 1,255,182 $ 1,287,074 $( 31,892) 

(lJ Reflects the change in the liability due to the time value of money. TCDRS does not 
charge fees or interest. 
(
2J Reflects plan changes adopted effective in 2019. 
r3J Relates to a/location of system-wide items. 

Sensitivity Analysis 

The following presents the net pension liability of the District, calculated using the discount rate of 8.1 %, 
as well as what the District's net pension liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (7.1%) or 1-percentage-higher (9.1%) than the current rate: 

1 % Decrease in 
Discount Rate 

(7.1% ) 

Total pension liability $ 1,406,802 
Fiduciary net position 1,287,074 

District's net pension liability (asset)$ 119,728 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Discount 
Rate 

(8.1%) 

$ 1,255,182 
1,287,074 

1 % Increase in 
Discount Rate 

(9.1%) 

$ 1,124,360 
1,287,074 

${ 31 ,892) $! 162,714) 

Detailed information about the pension plan's Fiduciary Net Position is available in a separately-issued 
TCDRS financial report. The report may be obtained on the Internet at www.tcdrs.org. 
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Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
Pensions 

For the year ended September 30, 2019, the District recognized pension expense of $88,100. At 
September 30, 2019, the District reported deferred outflows of related to pensions from the following 
sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 

Change of assumptions 

Difference between projected and actual investment earnings 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

Totals 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resourc~s 

4,047 

5,238 

85,140 

49,112 

$ 143,537 

$ 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

4,967 

$ 4 967 

$49,112 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension resulting from contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability for the 
year ending September 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expenses as follows: 

'or the Year Ended 
September 30 1 

2020 $ 34,344 
2021 14,658 
2022 14,024 
2023 25,715 

Thereafter 717 

$~458 

VI. DEFINED OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLAN 

Plan Description. The District voluntarily participates in the Texas County & District Group Term Life 
Fund (TCDRS GTLF). The GTLF is a single employer defined Other Post-Employment Benefit (OPEB) plan 
as defined by GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits 
Other Than Pensions. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of 
GASB Statement No. 75. It is established and administered in accordance with the TCDRS Act. 

Benefits Provided. The GTLF provides group-term life insurance to District employees who are active 
members in TCDRS, including or not including retirees. The District's Board of Managers opted into this 
program via a resolution, and may terminate coverage under, and discontinue participation in, the GTLF 
by adopting an resolution. 

Payments from this fund are similar to group-term life insurance benefits and are paid to the designated 
beneficiaries upon the receipt of an approved application for payment. The death benefit for active 
employees provides a lump-sum payment approximately equal to the employee's most recent regular 
annualized salary. The death benefit for retirees is considered an other employment benefit and is a 
fixed amount of $5,000 . 
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Employees covered by benefit terms. The number of employees currently covered by the benefit 
terms is as follows: 

Inactive employees receiving benefits 1 

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 

Active employees 7 

Contributions. The District contributes to the GTLF at a contractually required rate as determined by an 
annual actuarial valuation, which was 0.27% for 2019 and 0.28% for 2018, of which 0.02% and 0.02%, 
respectively, represented the retiree-only portion for each year, as a percentage of annual covered 
payroll. The rate is equal to the cost of providing one-year term life insurance. The funding policy for the 
GTLF program is to assure that adequate resources are available to meet all death benefit payments for 
the upcoming year; the intent is not to prefund retiree term life insurance during employees' entire 
careers. The District's contributions to the GTLF for the years ended September 30, 2019 and 2018 were 
$1,452 and $1,350, respectively, representing contributions for both active and retiree coverage, which 
equaled the required contributions each year. 

Total OPEB Liability. The District's total OPEB liability (TOL) was measured as of December 31, 2018 
as determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total OPEB liability in the December 31, 2018 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions: 

Measurement year ended 

Investment rate of return (discount rate) 

Actuarial cost method 

December 31, 2018 

4.10%, or 20 Year Bond GO Index published by 
bondbuyer.com as of December 27, 2018. 

Entry age normal 

Mortality rates for active members, retirees, and beneficiaries were based on the following: 

Depositing members 

Service retirees, beneficiaries 
and non-depositing members 

Disabled retirees 

90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee Mortality Table for 
males and 90% of the RP-2014 Active Employee Mortality 
Table for females, projected with 110% of the MP-2014 
Ultimate scale after 2014. 

130% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for 
males and 110% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality 
Table for females, both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 
Ultimate scale after 2014. 

130% of the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table for 
males and 115% of the RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality 
Table for females, both projected with 110% of the MP-2014 
Ultimate scale after 2014. 

All actuarial assumptions and methods that determined the total OPEB liability as of December 31, 2018 
were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2013 - December 
31, 2016, except where required to be different by GASB 75. 

Discount Rate. The TCDRS GTL program is treated as an unfunded OPEB plan because the GTL trust 
covers both actives and retirees and the assets are not segregated for these groups. Under GASB 75 
(paragraph 155), the discount rate for an unfunded OPEB plan should be based on 20-year tax-exempt 
AA or higher Municipal Bonds. Therefore, a discount rate of 4.10% based on the 20 Year Bond GO Index 
published by bondbuyer.com is used as of the measurement date of December 31, 2018. 
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Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis. The following schedule shows the impact of the total OPEB 
Liability if the discount rate used was 1 % less than and 1 % greater than the discount rate that was used 
in measuring the total OPEB Liability. 

1 % Decrease in Current 1 % Increase in 
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate 

(3.1%) (4.1%} (5.1%) 

Total OPEB liability $ 9,393 $ 7,900 $ 6,710 

OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEBs. At September 30, 2019, the District reported a liability of $7,900 for its total OPEB liability. The 
total OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018. For the year 
ended September 30, 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of $914. There were no changes of 
benefit terms that affected measurement of the total OPEB liability during the measurement period. 

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 

Balance at December 31, 2017 

Changes for the year: 

Service cost 

Interest on total OPEB liability C
1 l 

Effect of economic/demographic 
gains or losses 

Effect of assumptions changes or inputs <2
> 

Benefit payments 

Balance at December 31, 2018 

$ 

$ 

Changes in Total 
OPEB Liabili~ 

8,306 

736 

309 

407) 

( 947) 

__E) 

7,900 

(lJ Reflects the change in the liability due to the time value of money. TCDRS does not charge fees 
or interest. 

(ZJ Reflects change in discount rate and the new assumptions adopted based on the January 1, 
2013-December 31, 2016 Investigation of Experience. 

At September 30, 2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to other post-employment benefits from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Change of assumptions 
Difference between projected and actual investment earnings 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

Totals 

19 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

215 

70 

285 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

$ 443 
842 

$ 1,285 



$70 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total OPEB liability for the year ending 
September 30, 2020. Other amounts of the reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources 
related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year Ended 
Se12tember 30 , 

2020 $( 131) 
2021 ( 131) 
2022 ( 131) 
2023 ( 131) 
2024 ( 546) 

$( 1,070) 

VII. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
business interruption; errors and omissions; employee and client injuries and illnesses; and natural 
disasters. Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from such matters. 

VIII. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 

The District also has an eligible deferred compensation plan that permits employees to defer a portion of 
their current compensation in accordance with the provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457(b). 
Total contributions for the year ended September 30, 2019 was $13,080. 

IX. NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

Significant new accounting standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
not yet implemented by the District include the following: 

Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities - This Statement improves guidance regarding the identification of 
fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be 
reported. The focus is generally on whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary 
activity and on the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. This Statement will become 
effective for the District in fiscal year 2020. 

Statement No. 87, Leases - This Statement will improve the accounting and financial reporting for leases 
by governments by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities previously classifies as 
operating leases. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are 
financing the right to use an underlying asset. Under the Statement a lessee is required to recognize a 
lease liability and an intangible right-to-use asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease 
receivable and a deferred inflow of resource, enhancing the relevance and consistency of information 
about leasing activities. This Statement will become effective for the District in fiscal year 2021. 
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McLENNAN COUNTY 9-1-1 
EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CHENGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY/(ASSET) 
AND RELATED RATIOS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Plan Year Ended December 31 2014 

Total Pension Liability 

Service Cost $ 75,836 
Interest total pension liability 49,651 
Effect of plan changes -
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses ( 2,688) 
Effect of assumptions changes or inputs -
Benefit payments -

Net change in Total Pension Liability 122,799 

Total Pension Liability - beginning 575,800 

Total Pension Liability - ending (a) $ 698,599 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Contributions - employer $ 54,409 
Contributions - members 27,204 
Benefit payments -
Net investment income 46,439 
Administrative expenses ( 593) 
Other ( 43) 

Net change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 127,416 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - beginning 703,006 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - ending (b) 830,422 

Net Pension Liability (Asset) - ending (a) - (b) $( 131,823) 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a percentage of 
Total Pension Liability 118.87% 

Covered employee payroll $ 377,111 

Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a percentage of 
covered employee payroll -34.96% 

Note: The District adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions, effective October 1, 2014. Information for years prior 
to 2014 is not available. 
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2015 

$ 79,557 
58,813 

( 9,132) 
( 13,556) 

7,107 
( 21,465) 

101,324 

698,599 

$ 799 923 

$ 59,717 
29,859 

( 21,465) 
( 30,024) 
( 616) 

2 196 

39,667 

830,422 

870,089 

$( 70,166) 

108.77% 

$ 426,511 

-16.45% 



2016 2017 2018 

$ 85,177 $ 85,929 $ 89,177 
67,347 81,651 94,393 

2,542 4,469 5,295 
2,137 1,557 2,426 

4,303 
( 23,416) ( 23,651) ( 24,077) 

133,787 154,258 167,214 

799,923 933,710 1,087,968 

$ 933 ,710 $ 1,087,968 $ 1,255, 182 

$ 60,993 $ 64,335 $ 67,577 
30,496 32,167 33,788 

( 23,416) ( 23,651) ( 24,077) 
64,872 148,451 ( 22,060) 

( 704) ( 820) ( 1,034) 
6,672 969 2 427 

138,913 221,451 56,621 

870,089 1,009,002 1,230,453 

1,009,002 1,230,453 1,287,074 

$( 75,292) $ ( 142,485) $( 31 ,892) 

108.06% 113.10% 102.54% 

$ 435,661 $ 459,533 $ 482,690 

-17.28% -31.01% -6.61% 

-
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McLENNAN COUNTY 9-1-1 
EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Actuarially Determined Contributions $ 46,535 $ 45,641 $ 44,525 $ 48,251 $ 52,565 

Contributions in relation to the actuarially 
determined contributions 54,409 59,717 60,993 64,335 _____§L_577 

Contribution deficiency ( excess) $( 7,874) $( 14,076) $( 16,468) $( 16,084) $( 15,012) 

Covered employee payroll $ 377,111 $ 426,551 $ 435,661 $ 459,533 $ 482,690 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered employee payroll 

Valuation Date: 

14.43% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 14.00% 

Notes to Schedule of Contributions 
Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated each December 31, 
two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are 
reported. 

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contributions Rates: 
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal 

Amortization Method Level percentage of payroll, closed 

Remaining Amortization Period O years (based on contribution rate calculated in 12/31/2018 valuation) 

Asset Valuation Method 5-year smoothed market 

Inflation 

Salary Increases 

Investment Rate of Return 

Retirement Age 

Mortality 

Changes in Assumptions and 
Methods Reflected in the 
Schedule of Employer 
Contributions* 

Changes in Plan Provisions 
Reflected in the Schedule of 
Employer Contributions* 

2.75% 

Varies by age and service. 4.9% average over career including inflation. 

8.00%, net of investment expenses, including inflation 
Memoers wno are e11g101e ror service retirement are assumea to commence 
receiving benefit payments based on age. The average age at service 
retirement for recent retirees is 61. 

130% of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for males and 110% 
of the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table for females, both projected 
with 110% of the MP-2014 Ultimate scale after 2014. 

2015: New inflation, mortality and other assumptions were reflected. 
2017: New mortality assumptions were reflected. 

2015: No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule. 
2016: No changes in plan provisions were reflected in the Schedule. 
2017: Employer contributions reflect that a 1% flat COLA was adopted. Also, 
new Annuity Purchase Rates were reflected for benefits earned after 2017. 
2018: Employer contributions reflect at a 100% CPI COLA was adopted. 

* Only changes that affect the benefit amount and that are effective 2015 and later are shown in the Notes 
to the Schedule. 
Note: The District adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Pensions, effective October 1, 2014. Information for years prior 
to 2015 is not available. 
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McLENNAN COUNTY 9-1-1 
EMERGENCY ASSISTANCE DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 
AND RELATED RATIOS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019 

Plan Year Ended December 31 

Total OPEB Liability 

Service Cost 
Interest on total OPEB liability 
Effect of assumption changes or inputs 
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses 
Benefit payments 

Net change in Total OPEB Liability 

Total OPEB Liability - beginning 

Total OPEB Liability - ending 

Pensionable covered payroll 

Total OPEB liability (asset) as a percentage of 
covered payroll 

Note: The District adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Other Postemployment Benefits, effective October 1, 2017. 

Information for years prior to 2017 is not available . 
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2017 2018 

700 $ 736 
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276 ( 947) 
104) ( 407) 
92) ( 97) 

1,078 ( 406) 

7,228 8 306 

81306 $ 7 900 

459,533 $ 482,690 
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W~ll 
PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, L.L.P. 

401 West Stale t,ighway 6 

Waco. Texas 76710 

254.772.4901 pbhcpa.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

Board of Managers 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District 
Woodway, Texas 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of 
McLennan County 9- 1-1 Emergency Assistance District (the "District"), as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
District's basic financial statements, and have Issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2020. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect 
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the 
entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results 
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's 
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

P a11i1la , 8 M-W"I. t J/ w , L .l. P. 

Waco, Texas 
January 31, 2020 
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m~,1 
Board of Managers 
McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District 
Woodway, Texas 

PATTILLO, BROWN & HILL, L.L.P. 
401 West State Highway 6 

Waco, TE'XdS 76710 

254.772.4901 pbhcpa.com 

We have audited the financial statements of McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District as 
of and for the year ended September 30, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated January 31, 2020. 
Professional standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit. 

Our Responsibility in Relation to the Financial Statement Audit 

As communicated in our engagement letter dated August 6, 2019, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to form and express opinions about whether the financial statements that have been 
prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements 
does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities. 

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the internal control of McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency 
Assistance District solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any 
assurance concerning such internal control. 

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, 
we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to communicate to you. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to 
you. 

Compliance with All Ethics Requirements Regarding Independence 

The engagement team, others in our firm, and, as appropriate, our firm have complied with all 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. 

As a part of the engagement we assisted in preparing the financial statements, and related notes to 
the financial statements of McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District in conformity with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles based on information provided by you . These nonaudit services do 
not constitute an audit under Government Auditing Standards and such services were not conducted in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 
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In order to ensure we maintain our independence for performing these nonaudit services certain 
safeguards were applied to this engagement. Management assumed responsibility for the financial statements, 
and related notes to the financial statements and any other nonaudit services we provided. Management 
acknowledged in the management representation letter our assistance with the preparation of the financial 
statements, and related notes to the financial statements and that these items were reviewed and approved prior 
to their issuance and accepted responsibility for them. Further, the nonaudit services were overseen by an 
individual within management that has the suitable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluated the adequacy and 
results of the services; and accepted responsibility for them. 

Qualitative Aspects of the Entity's Significant Accounting Practices 

Significant Accounting Policies 

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of 
the significant accounting policies adopted by McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District is 
included in Note I to the financial statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and 
no changes in significant accounting policies or their application during the fiscal year ending September 30, 
2019. No matters have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform 
you about (1) the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant 
accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or 
consensus. 

Significant Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management's current judgments. Those judgments are normally based on knowledge and 
experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates 
are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the 
possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly from management's current judgments. 

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are: 

Management's estimate of the useful lives of capital assets is based on the expected lifespan of the 
asset in accordance with standard guidelines. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop 
the estimate of useful lives in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as 
a whole and in relation to the applicable opinion units. 

Management's estimate of the net pension asset, total OPEB liability, pension expense and OPEB 
expense are based on actuarial assumptions which are determined by the demographics of the plan and future 
projections that the actuary makes based on historical information of the plan and the investment market. We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the net pension asset, total OPEB liability, pension 
expense and OPEB expense and determined that they are reasonable in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole and in relation to the applicable opinion units. 

Financial Statement Disclosures 

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive 
because of their significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting McLennan 
County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District's financial statements relate to the net pension asset. The 
disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Significant Difficulties Encountered during the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of 
the audit. 
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Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements 

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and 
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are trivial, and communicate 
them to the appropriate level of management. Further, professional standards require us to also communicate 
the effect of uncorrected misstatements related to prior periods on the relevant classes of transactions, 
account balances or disclosures, and the financial statements as a whole and each applicable opinion unit. 
Management has corrected all identified misstatements. 

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected 
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures. None of 
the misstatements identified by us as a result of our audit procedures and corrected by management were 
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole or applicable 
opinion units. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a 
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing 
matter, which could be significant to McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District's financial 
statements or the auditor's report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit. 

Representations Requested from Management 

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the 
management representation letter dated January 31, 2020. 

Management's Consultations with Other Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with 
other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters. 

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues 

In the normal course of our professional association with McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency 
Assistance District, we generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles 
and auditing standards, operating and regulatory conditions affecting the entity, and operational plans and 
strategies that may affect the risks of material misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a 
condition to our retention as McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District's auditors. 

New Accounting Pronouncements 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued the following statements which become 
effective for fiscal years 2020 and 2021. 

Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities - This Statement improves guidance regarding the identification 
of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be 
reported. The focus is generally on whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and 
on the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. This Statement will become effective for the 
District in fiscal year 2020. 
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Statement No. 87, Leases - This Statement will improve the accounting and financial reporting for 
leases by governments by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities previously classified as 
operating leases. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the principle that leases are 
financing the right to use an underlying asset. Under the Statement a lessee is required to recognize a lease 
liability and an intangible right-to-use asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a 
deferred inflow of resource, enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about leasing activities. 
This Statement will become effective for the District in fiscal year 2021. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Managers and management 
of McLennan County 9-1-1 Emergency Assistance District and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

Patli:IJ,,, B~ .J- 7-/uf L .L.P 
I I ' 

Waco, Texas 
January 31, 2020 

4 



McLennan County Credit Card Purchases

Department Amount Description

Information Technology $99.95
Purchase of Screencast Pro Renewal from 
TechSmith. It is for screen capturing software

54th District Court $1,039.97
Purchase of computer equipment from Best Buy 
for people working from home due to COVID-19

Road & Bridge, Pct. 2 $1,050.96
Purchase of computer equipment from Best Buy 
for people working from home due to COVID-19

Justice of the Peace, Pct. 1-1 $1,859.96
Purchase of computer equipment from Best Buy 
for people working from home due to COVID-19

Various Departments $340.00 Purchase of gloves from JAB Trading Industries

74th District Court $829.98
Purchase of a laptop ($799.99) and sleeve for 
laptop ($29.99) from Best Buy due to COVID-19
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Prices quoted reflect 2020 pricing (pre-tax) and will be held firm for ninety (90) days from the date of 
this letter. Terms of payment are net thirty (30) days from date of invoice, and all charges are FOB 
Moorestown, NJ. 
 
Lastly, you shall independently and solely be responsible, at your own cost, for removing any and all 
information that may be stored on any hard drives contained within the existing PC prior to OPEX 
removing such equipment from your equipment site. 
 
Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. If I can be of further assistance, please contact 
me at (856) 727-1100 extension 2551 or rsaenz@opex.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
OPEX Corporation 
Rudy Saenz      Cc: Michael Massey 
Regional Service Manager          National Service Manger 

Description QTY 

OPTION 1 
Cost per PC 

(with Trade-in PC) 
$4,500.00 

OPTION 2 
Cost per PC 

(with Trade-in PC and 
customer retaining the 

hard drive) 
$4,995.00 

OPTION 3 
Cost per PC 

(without Trade-in PC) 
$6,000.00 

Falcon V serial 
# FA07891 

1 $4,500.00 $4,995.00 $6,000.00 

     
TOTAL COST 

(Pre-Tax) 
 $4,500.00 $4,995.00 $6,000.00 

mailto:rsaenz@opex.com
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 CLAIM DEDUCTIBLE INVOICE

Via E-Mail: smfelton@co.mclennan.tx.us
Attn: Hon. Scott Felton
McLennan County
PO Box 1728
Waco, TX 76703-1728

Deductible payment is due.

  Balance Due Upon Receipt

Invoice #: NRDD-0005850
Invoice Date: 03/19/2020
Claim #: LE20197319-1
Member ID: 1550

          Description       Amount Due

Claim LE20197319-1: Invoice for Deductible
Subsidiary/office associated with claim: Sheriff
Date of Loss: 11/06/2019
Claimant: Andre  Boyd 

$10,000.00

Total Policy Deductible Amount per Claim
Total Amount Received to Date

$10,000.00
$0.00

Total Amount Due $10,000.00
Total amount due may be less than deductible amount depending on claim payments made.

Claim Deductible Payment Remittance Form
Attn: Hon. Scott Felton
McLennan County
PO Box 1728
Waco, TX 76703-1728

Invoice Date: 03/19/2020
Invoice #:NRDD-0005850
Claim #: LE20197319-1
Amount Due: $10,000.00

Amount Enclosed: 

If the total amount enclosed is not $10,000.00,
please use the notes section below to explain:

Please make checks payable to (include invoice #):
Texas Association of Counties Risk Management Pool
PO Box 2426
San Antonio, TX 78298-9900

Printed Mar 19, 2020
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 CLAIM DEDUCTIBLE INVOICE

Via E-Mail: smfelton@co.mclennan.tx.us
Attn: Hon. Scott Felton
McLennan County
PO Box 1728
Waco, TX 76703-1728

Deductible payment is due.

  Balance Due Upon Receipt

Invoice #: NRDD-0005817
Invoice Date: 03/19/2020
Claim #: LE20196545-1
Member ID: 1550

          Description       Amount Due

Claim LE20196545-1: Invoice for Deductible
Subsidiary/office associated with claim: Sheriff
Date of Loss: 06/21/2019
Claimant: John Montgomery

$377.50

Total Policy Deductible Amount per Claim
Total Amount Received to Date

$10,000.00
$4,833.80

Total Amount Due $377.50
Total amount due may be less than deductible amount depending on claim payments made.

Claim Deductible Payment Remittance Form
Attn: Hon. Scott Felton
McLennan County
PO Box 1728
Waco, TX 76703-1728

Invoice Date: 03/19/2020
Invoice #:NRDD-0005817
Claim #: LE20196545-1
Amount Due: $377.50

Amount Enclosed: 

If the total amount enclosed is not $377.50,
please use the notes section below to explain:

Please make checks payable to (include invoice #):
Texas Association of Counties Risk Management Pool
PO Box 2426
San Antonio, TX 78298-9900

Printed Mar 19, 2020
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 CLAIM DEDUCTIBLE INVOICE

Via E-Mail: smfelton@co.mclennan.tx.us
Attn: Hon. Scott Felton
McLennan County
PO Box 1728
Waco, TX 76703-1728

Deductible payment is due.

  Balance Due Upon Receipt

Invoice #: NRDD-0005940
Invoice Date: 03/19/2020
Claim #: PO20197315-1
Member ID: 1550

          Description       Amount Due

Claim PO20197315-1: Invoice for Deductible
Subsidiary/office associated with claim: Commissioner's Court
Date of Loss: 11/04/2019
Claimant: Laura  Uptmore 

$500.00

Total Policy Deductible Amount per Claim
Total Amount Received to Date

$10,000.00
$0.00

Overdue Invoice Invoice Date
NRDD-0005583 02/05/2020

Amount
$9,500.00

Total Amount Due $10,000.00
Total amount due may be less than deductible amount depending on claim payments made.

Claim Deductible Payment Remittance Form
Attn: Hon. Scott Felton
McLennan County
PO Box 1728
Waco, TX 76703-1728

Invoice Date: 03/19/2020
Invoice #:NRDD-0005940, NRDD-0005583
Claim #: PO20197315-1
Amount Due: $10,000.00

Amount Enclosed: 

If the total amount enclosed is not $10,000.00,
please use the notes section below to explain:

Please make checks payable to (include invoice #):
Texas Association of Counties Risk Management Pool
PO Box 2426
San Antonio, TX 78298-9900

Printed Mar 19, 2020
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 CLAIM DEDUCTIBLE INVOICE

Via E-Mail: smfelton@co.mclennan.tx.us
Attn: Hon. Scott Felton
McLennan County
PO Box 1728
Waco, TX 76703-1728

Deductible payment is due.

  Balance Due Upon Receipt

Invoice #: NRDD-0005959
Invoice Date: 04/06/2020
Claim #: LE20195738-1
Member ID: 1550

          Description       Amount Due

Claim LE20195738-1: Invoice for Deductible
Subsidiary/office associated with claim: Sheriff
Date of Loss: 01/31/2019
Claimant: Kenyotta Haywood

$287.50

Total Policy Deductible Amount per Claim
Total Amount Received to Date

$10,000.00
$2,451.00

Total Amount Due $287.50
Total amount due may be less than deductible amount depending on claim payments made.

Claim Deductible Payment Remittance Form
Attn: Hon. Scott Felton
McLennan County
PO Box 1728
Waco, TX 76703-1728

Invoice Date: 04/06/2020
Invoice #:NRDD-0005959
Claim #: LE20195738-1
Amount Due: $287.50

Amount Enclosed: 

If the total amount enclosed is not $287.50,
please use the notes section below to explain:

Please make checks payable to (include invoice #):
Texas Association of Counties Risk Management Pool
PO Box 2426
San Antonio, TX 78298-9900

Printed Apr 6, 2020
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Work Order – Inspection Proposal 
Date: March 12, 2020 
Attention: Jayme Skinner Building: McLennan County 
Mailing McLennan County 
Address: 214 N 4th St #100 Address: various locations, Waco 76701 
City: Waco, TX  76701-1404 Contract #: See List 

Serial #: 9 units: see attached list 
Provide billing address if different from the mailing address above:  Rte#: 4t 

Purchaser authorizes thyssenkrupp Elevator to perform the following described work on the subject elevators in the above 
referenced building: 

Our records indicate the Annual Safety Test for your elevators are due by May 1, 2020.  The following is our proposal to have 
the annual safety tests, as required by the State of Texas and the American National Standard Safety Code, witnessed by a QEI 
Inspector and certified with the State.  This covers the cost of providing your choice of a QEI inspector from a list of 
thyssenkrupp-approved vendors, plus coordination, notification, transportation, scheduling, handling, and processing. 

The cost for providing the inspection and the additional services listed above will be $4,398.00.  Inspection fees are not 
taxable.  This does not include the filing fee for the Certificate of Compliance. 

thyssenkrupp Elevator will exercise caution and care in the performance of this testing, but will not be responsible for any 
damage done to the building structure or equipment occasioned by these tests. 

IMPORTANT OWNER  INFORMATION: 

Once you have received your Inspection Report, you as the real property owner, or agent for the real property owner, are 
required by law to file a copy of each Inspection Report, one (1) per elevator or escalator, and a $20.00 filing fee per unit, with:  
The Commissioner of the Texas Department of Licensing and Regulation Executive Offices, P.O. Box 12157, Austin, Texas 
78711.  There is a 30-day period from the actual date of inspection to comply with the TDLR letter of code violations. 

This Work Order is submitted for acceptance within 30 days from the date executed by thyssenkrupp Elevator. 

Purchaser’s acceptance of this Work Order together with the terms and conditions printed on subsequent pages hereof and which are 
expressly made a part of this proposal and agreed to, and its approval by an executive officer of thyssenkrupp Elevator will constitute 
exclusively and entirely the agreement for the work herein described.  All prior representations or agreements regarding this work, whether 
written or verbal, will be deemed to be merged herein, and no other changes in or additions to this agreement will be recognized unless made 
in writing and properly executed by both parties.  This Work Order specifically contemplates work outside the scope of any maintenance 
contract currently in effect between the parties; any such contract shall be unaffected by this Work Order. 

No agent or employee shall have the authority to waive or modify any of the terms of this Agreement without the written approval of an 
authorized thyssenkrupp Elevator manager. 

Accepted:  Please execute completely to ensure current 
    contact information in our data base 

MCLENNAN COUNTY 

By: _________________________________________ 
(Signature of Authorized Individual) 

_________________________________________ 
(Printed or Typed Name) 

Title: ________________________   Date:   ____ 

Contact Person______________________________ ____ 

Telephone No:____         _______________    Ext:_______ 
Send report(s) to this 
Email Address: ____ 

Building Access Issues?: ______________________ 

AGREEMENT: unless otherwise stated, you agree to pay as follows: a minimum of 50% upon signed 
acceptance and the balance upon completion.  If this proposal meets with your approval, please return one (1) 
signed copy with your payment to the   Austin address   listed below. 

THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORPORATION 
3615 Willow Springs Road 
Austin, Texas 78704

By: ______________ 
   (thyssenkrupp Elevator Representative) 
     Krissy Rhoades, QEI Coordinator 
(512) 486-1010, fax: (866) 768-9304

krissy.reeder@thyssenkrupp.com

Date: March 12, 2020 

thyssenkrupp Approval:________________________ 

Title: Sales Manager   Date: ________ 
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TKE JOB # JOB NAME AND ADDRESS SERIAL # US SN TYPE CAPACITY SPEED ELBI # DECAL # PRICE

US35987 ARCHIVES BUILDING DOVER EH4551 93862 OILDRAULIC 4500 110 9727 4155 $410
     824 WASHINGTON

US35988 COURTHOUSE DOVER FH5927 93863 OILDRAULIC 2500 150 109 40026 $410
    500 WASHINGTON DOVER FH5928 93864 OILDRAULIC 2000 150 109 40025 $410

US35989 COURTHOUSE ANNEX TKE BAH097 105657 TRACTION 2500 200 106 74832 $459
     520 COLUMBUS  5-YR DUE 2021

US35990 JAIL (TRANSFER ELEVATOR) DOVER E55557  93865 OILDRAULIC 2000 125 108 29300 $410
    510 COLUMBUS

US35991 RECORDS BUILDING DOVER E94686 93866 OILDRAULIC 2500 125 175 26905 $410
    215 NORTH 5TH STREET

US35859 HEART OF TEXAS COLISEUM DOVER EJ3241 93691 OILDRAULIC 2500 100 12989 43983 $410
     4601 BOSQUE BLVD.

US36013 CIVIGENICS - JAIL DOVER C30213 105658 TRACTIONS 2500 350 108 26930 $459
5-YR DUE 2022

US36013 CIVIGENICS - HIGH FIVE DOVER FH5926  93899 OILDRAULIC 2500 125 108 35190 $410
     520 COLUMBUS   

US36018 SHERIFF'S OFC/LONE STAR GAS TKE FX5450 93907 OILDRAULIC 2500 150 31495 69485 $410
    901 WASHINGTON

TRAVEL $200

TOTAL $4,398

MCLENNAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS COURT

WACO, TEXAS  76703

ELEVATOR INSPECTIONS DUE MAY, 2020



Terms and conditions.

thyssenkrupp Elevator assumes no responsibility for 
any part of the elevator equipment except that upon 
which work has been done under this agreement. 
No work, service, examination or liability on the 
part of us other than that specifically mentioned 
herein is included or intended. It is agreed that we 
do not assume possession or control of any part of 
the equipment and that such remains Purchaser’s 
exclusively as the owner, lessor, lessee, possessor, 
or manager thereof.

Our performance of this contract is contingent upon 
your furnishing us with any necessary permission or 
priority required under the terms and conditions of 
government regulations affecting the acceptance of 
this order or the manufacture, delivery or installation 
of the equipment.

We have made no examination of, and assume no 
responsibility for, any part of the elevator equipment 
except that necessary to do the work described in 
this proposal.

It is agreed that thyssenkrupp Elevator’s personnel 
shall be given a safe place in which to work and 
we reserve the right to discontinue our work in the 
building whenever, in our sole opinion, this provision 
is being violated.

You agree that in the event asbestos material is 
knowingly or unknowingly removed or disturbed 
in any manner at the job site by parties other 
than employees of thyssenkrupp Elevator or those 
of our subcontractors, the work place will be 
monitored, and prior to and during our presence 
on the job, Purchaser will certify that asbestos 
in the environment does not exceed .01 fibers 
per cc as tested by NIOSH 7400. In the event our 
employees, or those of our subcontractors, are 
exposed to an asbestos hazard, PCB’s or other 
hazardous substances resulting from work of 
individuals other than our employees, or those of 
its subcontractors, you agree to indemnify, defend, 
and hold thyssenkrupp Elevator harmless from any 
and all claims, demands, lawsuits, and proceedings 
brought against us, or our employees resulting from 
such exposure. You recognize that your obligation 
to thyssenkrupp Elevator under this clause includes 
payment of all attorneys’ fees, court costs, 
judgments, settlements, interest and any other 
expenses of litigation arising out of such claims 
or lawsuits. Removal and disposal of asbestos 
containing material is your responsibility.

Unless otherwise agreed, it is understood that the 
work will be performed during regular working 
hours of the trades involved. If overtime is mutually 
agreed upon, an additional charge at our usual rates 
for such work shall be added to the contract price.

INDEMNITY CLAUSE

Purchaser agrees to fully and completely defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless thyssenkrupp Elevator 
from any and all claims and lawsuits (whether 
same is for personal injury, property damage or 
death of any person) asserted against thyssenkrupp 
Elevator which allege to have a factual or legal 
basis in the services contemplated by this contract; 

regardless of whether such actions arise from the 
use, operation, repair, installation, or condition of 
the equipment which is the subject of this contract 
or its machine room(s), hatchway(s), or component 
part(s). Purchaser understands and agrees that its 
obligation to defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
exist regardless of whether it is alleged or proved 
that thyssenkrupp Elevator is jointly or solely liable 
under theory of legal fault, including, but not limited 
to negligence, gross negligence, strict liability, 
strict product liability, breach of warranty (whether 
expressed or implied) or breach of contract. 
Purchaser recognizes its obligation under this clause 
includes payment of all attorneys’ fees, costs of 
court and other expenses of litigation incurred by 
thyssenkrupp Elevator, together with any and all 
damages (including punitive damages to the extent 
allowed by law) awarded by court, jury or other 
competent authority, judgments, settlements, appeal 
bonds necessary to suspend judgment pending 
appeal, interest (prejudgment and post-judgment) 
and attorney’s fees awarded to an adverse party 
arising out of such claims or lawsuits. This 
indemnification obligation is the broadest allowed 
by law.

You expressly agree to name thyssenkrupp Elevator 
as an additional insured in your liability and any 
excess (umbrella) liability insurance policy(ies). Such 
insurance must insure us for those claims or losses 
referenced in the above paragraph. You hereby 
waive the right of subrogation.

We shall not be liable for any loss, damages or delay 
caused by acts of government, strikes, lockouts, fire, 
explosions, theft, floods, riot, civil commotion, war, 
malicious mischief, acts of God, or any other cause 
beyond our control, and in no event shall we be 
liable for consequential damages.

Should loss of or damage to our material, tools 
or work occur at the erection site, you shall 
compensate us therefore, unless such loss or 
damage results from our own acts or omissions.

You agree that all existing equipment removed by 
thyssenkrupp Elevator shall become the exclusive 
property of thyssenkrupp Elevator.

We retain title to all equipment supplied by us under 
this contract, and a security interest therein, (which, 
it is agreed, can be removed without material injury 
to the real property) until all payments under the 
terms of this contract, including deferred payments 
and any extension is thereof, shall have been made. 
In the event of any default by you in the payment, 
under any other provision of this contract, we may 
take immediate possession of the manner of its 
attachment to the real estate or the sale, mortgage, 
or lease of the real estate. Pursuant to the Uniform 
Commercial Code, at our request, you agree to join 
with us in executing any financing or continuation 
statements, which may be appropriate for us to 
file in public offices in order to perfect our security 
interest in such equipment.

Certificates of Workmen’s Compensation, Bodily 
Injury and Property Damage Liability Insurance 
coverage will be furnished you upon request. The 
premium for any bonds or insurance beyond our 
standard coverage and limits will be an addition to 
the contract price.

If any drawings, illustrations or descriptive 
matter are furnished with this proposal, they are 
approximate and are submitted only to show the 
general style and arrangement of equipment being 
offered.

You shall bear all cost(s) for any re-inspection of 
our work due to items outside the scope of this 
agreement or for any inspection arising from the 
work of other trades requiring the assistance of 
thyssenkrupp Elevator.

All applicable sales and use taxes, permit fees and 
licenses imposed upon us as of the date of this 
proposal, are included in the contract price. You 
agree to pay, as an addition to the contract price, 
the amount of any additional taxes, fees or other 
charges exacted from you or thyssenkrupp Elevator 
on account thereof, by any law enacted after the 
date of this proposal.

A service charge of 1.5% per month, or the 
highest legal rate, whichever is less, shall apply to 
delinquent accounts. In the event of any default of 
the payment provisions herein, you agree to pay, 
in addition to any defaulted amount, all attorney 
fees, collection costs or court costs in connection 
therewith.

In the event a third party is retained to enforce, 
construe or defend any of the terms and conditions 
of this agreement or to collect any monies due 
hereunder, either with or without litigation, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to recover all costs 
and reasonable attorney’s fees.

You hereby waive trial by jury and do further hereby 
consent that venue of any proceeding or lawsuit 
under this agreement shall be in Dallas County, 
Texas.

The rights of thyssenkrupp Elevator under this 
agreement shall be cumulative and the failure on 
the part of the thyssenkrupp Elevator to exercise 
any rights given hereunder shall not operate to 
forfeit or waive any of said rights and any extension, 
indulgence or change by thyssenkrupp Elevator in 
the method, mode or manner of payment or any of 
its other rights shall not be construed as a waiver of 
any of its rights under this agreement.

In the event any portion of this agreement is 
deemed invalid or unenforceable by a court of 
law, such finding shall not affect the validity or 
enforceability of any other portion of this agreement.

In the event your acceptance is in the form of a 
purchase order or other kind of document, the 
provisions, terms and conditions of this proposal 
shall govern in the event of conflict.
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McLennan County Purchasing Department 
214 North 5th Street    Waco, Texas 76701-1302 

Ken Bass 
 Director of Purchasing 

May 5, 2020 

Re:  Request to Renew Bid 15-017, Printing of McLennan County Tax Statements 

Commissioners Court: 

We consulted with the Tax Office regarding the renewal of Bid 15-017, Printing of 
McLennan County Tax Statements.  Currently this bid is awarded to Peregrine Solutions. 
We were told they would like to renew this contract. 

We received an email from David Stith with Peregrine Solutions stating they would like 
to renew our contract at the same rates.  If approved, the renewal dates would be from 
July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. 

We respectfully submit this request for your consideration. 

Thank You, 
Ken Bass 
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ELEVENTH MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT ADDENDUM BETWEEN 
MCLENNAN COUNTY, TEXAS AND BAYLOR UNIVERSITY

FOR DWI/DRUG COURT PROGRAM COOPERATION

WHEREAS, on October 26, 2010, McLennan County and Baylor University executed 
an Agreement; and that agreement has been amended by Ten Addendums, the most recent being 
signed on or about May 2019, all of which are incorporated herein by reference;

WHEREAS, that Agreement, in Section IV. A., provided for an initial term 
beginning July 1, 2010, and continuing through June 30, 2011, with automatic renewal for 
additional one-year terms, unless earlier terminated or non-renewed, as provided in Section 
IV. B. of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, both parties wish to continue the Agreement for the period of June 1, 2020 
through May 31, 2021;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED THAT the Memorandum of Agreement 
Between McLennan County, Texas and Baylor University for DWI/Drug Court Program 
Cooperation, is hereby re-authorized and continued for the period effective June 1, 2020 
through May 31, 2021, under the same terms and conditions as the original Agreement 
and Addendums. Payment for the 2019-2020 intern will end May 31, 2020 and payment 
for the 2020-2021 intern will commence June 1, 2020.

MCLENNAN COUNTY, TEXAS

By:  _______________________________________________
County Judge

Date:  ______________________________________________

BAYLOR UNIVERSITY

By:  _______________________________________________

Date:  ______________________________________________

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2DAA1D3F-0FEF-4E3B-865A-B2416665930D

Provost

4/21/2020

Nancy Brickhouse

Scott M. Felton
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U. S. Department of Justice 

United States Marshals Service  Modification of Intergovernmental Agreement 

1. Agreement No.

80-10-0033

2. Effective Date

April 1, 2020

3. Facility Code(s)

6S4

4. Modification No.

Special VTC

Language

5. DUNS No.

021-619-085

6. Issuing Federal Agency

United States Marshals Service 

Prisoner Operations Division 

CG-3, 3rd Floor 

Washington, DC 20530-0001 

7. Local Government

McLennan County/Jack Harwell Detention Facility 

3101 Easy Marlin Highway 

Waco, Texas 76705 

8. Appropriation Data

15X1020

9. Per-Diem Rate

$ 84.12

10. Guard/Transportation Hourly Rate

$ 28.14

11. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED SPECIFICALLY HEREIN, ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE IGA DOCUMENT

REFERRED TO IN BLOCK 1, REMAIN UNCHANGED.  TERMS OF THIS MODIFICATION:

 The purpose of the modification is to incorporate the use of guard services to
monitor Federal Prisoners on a case-by-case basis during court hearings conducted

via VideoTeleconferencing (VTC) when the Federal Judiciary has restricted in-
person presentation of a prisoner before the court. The guard hourly rate is $28.14

per hour per guard.

NO OTHER TERMS OR CONDITIONS ARE AFFECTED BY THIS MODIFICATION 

12. INSTRUCTIONS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT FOR EXECUTION OF THIS MODIFICTION:

A.□   LOCAL GOVERNMENT IS NOT REQUIRED 

  TO SIGN THIS DOCUMENT 

B. LOCAL GOVERNMENT IS REQUIRED TO SIGN 

THIS DOCUMENT AND RETURN ALL COPIES TO 
  U. S. MARSHAL    

13. APPROVALS

A. LOCAL GOVERNMENT

_________________________________________ 
Signature 

__________________________   _____________ 

 TITLE  DATE 

B. FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

__________________________________________ 
Signature 

Chief, IAB  _____________     _    _____  __________ 

 TITLE  DATE 
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U. S. Department of Justice 

United States Marshals Service  Modification of Intergovernmental Agreement 

1. Agreement No.

80-99-0119

2. Effective Date

April 1, 2020

3. Facility Code(s)

6DL

4. Modification No.

Special VTC

Language

5. DUNS No.

021-619-085

6. Issuing Federal Agency

United States Marshals Service 

Prisoner Operations Division 

CG-3, 3rd Floor 

Washington, DC 20530-0001 

7. Local Government

McLennan County Jail 

3201 E. Hwy 6 

Waco, Texas 76705 

8. Appropriation Data

15X1020

9. Per-Diem Rate

$ 75.00

10. Guard/Transportation Hourly Rate

$ 29.72

11. EXCEPT AS PROVIDED SPECIFICALLY HEREIN, ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE IGA DOCUMENT

REFERRED TO IN BLOCK 1, REMAIN UNCHANGED.  TERMS OF THIS MODIFICATION:

 The purpose of the modification is to incorporate the use of guard services to
monitor Federal Prisoners on a case-by-case basis during court hearings conducted

via VideoTeleconferencing (VTC) when the Federal Judiciary has restricted in-
person presentation of a prisoner before the court. The guard hourly rate is $29.72

per hour per guard.

NO OTHER TERMS OR CONDITIONS ARE AFFECTED BY THIS MODIFICATION 

12. INSTRUCTIONS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT FOR EXECUTION OF THIS MODIFICTION:

A.□   LOCAL GOVERNMENT IS NOT REQUIRED 

  TO SIGN THIS DOCUMENT 

B. LOCAL GOVERNMENT IS REQUIRED TO SIGN 

THIS DOCUMENT AND RETURN ALL COPIES TO 
  U. S. MARSHAL    

13. APPROVALS

A. LOCAL GOVERNMENT

_________________________________________ 
Signature 

__________________________   _____________ 

 TITLE  DATE 

B. FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

__________________________________________ 
Signature 

Chief, IAB  _____________     _    _____  __________ 

 TITLE  DATE 
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WACO MCLENNAN COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION

P.O. Box 1220 
Waco, Texas 76703-1220 

(254) 752-6551

April 27, 2020 

Judge Scott Felton 
McLennan County 
P.O. Box 1728 
Waco, Texas 76703 

Re: Payment Request #1 
Swan Products, LLC 

Dear Judge Felton: 

Swan Products, LLC has requested a portion of its grant funds related to a reimbursement for 
costs related to the installation of a fire pump to accommodate its facility expansion.    Per the 
Amended Program Project Agreement 2019-136 dated March 5, 2019 for Swan Products, LLC 
as outlined in the incentive support Section 1.2.0, WMCEDC will reimburse up to $100,000 for 
expenses associated with the fire pump installation at its facility located at 700 Jewell Drive.  
Funds will be payable to Swan Products, LLC.   

Our team has verified the documentation provided by Swan for $76,514.90 in expenses 
associated with improvements necessary for the above-mentioned operations.   

Swan is requesting a disbursement totaling $76,517.90.  We submit this draw request for 
payment.   

The County’s portion of this payment request is one-half of the total or $38,258.95. 

If you have other questions or need additional information, please let me know. 

Sincerely, 

Matthew T. Meadors 
Administrator 

Enclosures Received:____________________________ 
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2021 McLennan County Resolution 
Indigent Defense Improvement Grant Program 

 
WHEREAS,  under the provisions of the Texas Government Code Section 79.037 and Texas 
Administrative Code Chapter 173, counties are eligible to receive grants from the Texas  Indigent 
Defense Commission to provide improvements in indigent defense services in the county; and 
  
WHEREAS, this grant program will assist the county in the implementation and the improvement 
of the indigent criminal defense services in this county; and 
   
WHEREAS, McLennan County Commissioners Court has agreed that in the event of loss or 
misuse of the funds, McLennan County Commissioners assures that the funds will be returned in 
full to the Texas Indigent Defense Commission.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED and ordered that the County Judge of this county is 
designated as the Authorized Official to apply for, accept, decline, modify, or cancel the grant 
application for the Indigent Defense Improvement Grant Program and all other necessary 
documents to accept said grant; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that David L. Hodges is designated as the Program Director and 
contact person for this grant and the County Auditor is designated as the Financial Officer for this 
grant. 
  
Adopted this ______day of ________________, 2020.  
 
             ______________________________________ 
         Scott M. Felton 
          County Judge 
Attest: 
J.A. “Andy” Harwell, County Clerk 
McLennan County, Texas 
 
____________________________________________ 
By: Deputy County Clerk 
 

Internet Submission Form 
 

After submitting the Improvement grant application on-line, the following Internet submission 
confirmation number was received #D202115520200330. This grant application submission was 
in accordance with the Commissioners Court Resolution above. 
 
_____________________________________________ 
                            Scott M. Felton 
                             County Judge 

































Office of the Governor, Public Safety Office 

Homeland Security Grants Division 
Funding Announcement: FY2020 Border 
Prosecution Unit (BPU)  

Purpose 

The Homeland Security Grants Division (HSGD) is soliciting grant applications for projects that prosecute 
border crimes during state fiscal year 2020. The purpose of this solicitation is to provide prosecution 
resources for District and County Attorneys along the Texas-Mexico border and for counties that are 
significantly affected by border crime. 

Available Funding 

State funds for these projects are authorized under the Texas General Appropriations Act, 
Article I, Rider 18 for Trusteed Programs within the Office of the Governor. All awards are 
subject to the availability of appropriated funds and any modifications or additional 
requirements that may be imposed by law. 

Eligible Organizations 

1. Counties within the Texas border region as defined by Texas Government Code §772.0071(a)(2)
having a prosecuting attorney with membership in the Border Prosecution Unit as provided by
Texas Government Code §772.053.

2. Counties that the PSO determines to be significantly affected by border crime.

Application Process 

Applicants must access the Office of the Governor’s eGrants grant management website at 
https://eGrants.gov.texas.gov to register and apply for funding. Additional requirements are included 
within the online application. 

Note for All Applicants: Applicants must upload the required Texas Direct Deposit Authorization Form, 
Texas Application for Payee Identification Number Form, and the IRS W9 Form for each application prior 
to submission. The eGrants system will not allow an application to be submitted until these forms are 
attached to the application. These forms are available for download from eGrants at 
https://egrants.gov.texas.gov/updates.aspx under the Financial Management section of “Forms and 
Guides” or from the “Forms” link on the Profile/Grant.Vendor tab within the grant application. 

Key Dates 

Action Date 

Funding Announcement Release Friday, January 18, 2019 

Online System Opening Date Friday, January 18, 2019 

Final Date to Submit and Certify an Application Thursday, March 28, 2019  5 P.M. CST 

Project Period 

Projects selected for funding must begin on or after September 1, 2019 and expire on or before August 
31, 2020.  

      L 2.
(4 pages)

https://egrants.gov.texas.gov/
https://egrants.gov.texas.gov/updates.aspx


F Y 2 0 2 0  B P U  A n n o u n c e m e n t  P a g e  2 | 4 

Funding Levels 

Minimum:  $10,000 
Maximum:  None  
Match Requirement:  None  

Standards 

Grantees must comply with standards applicable to this fund source cited in the State Uniform Grant 
Management Standards (UGMS), Federal Uniform Grant Guidance, and all statutes, requirements, and 
guidelines applicable to this funding. 

Eligible Activities and Costs 

1. Prosecuting criminals charged with border crimes as defined by Texas Government Code 
§772.0071(a)(1).  

2. Training members of the unit and law enforcement agencies in the border region on specific 
issues and techniques relating to the investigation and prosecution of border crime.  

Program-Specific Requirements 

Applicants must be in compliance with the Texas Administrative Code (37 TAC Part 7 Chapters 221-225) 
and all rules established by the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (TCOLE) regarding the training of 
law enforcement in Texas; or, contract or reimburse for services with training providers who meet this 
requirement.  

Eligibility Requirements 

1. Entities receiving funds from HSGD must be located in a county that has an average of 90% or 
above on both adult and juvenile dispositions entered into the computerized criminal history 
database maintained by the Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) as directed in the Texas 
Code of Criminal Procedure, Chapter 60.  This disposition completeness percentage is defined as 
the percentage of arrest charges a county reports to DPS for which a disposition has been 
subsequently reported and entered into the computerized criminal history system.  

2. Eligible applicants operating a law enforcement agency must be current on reporting Part I 
violent crime data to the Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) for inclusion in the annual 
Uniform Crime Report (UCR). To be considered eligible for funding, applicants must have 
submitted a full twelve months of accurate data to DPS for the most recent calendar year.  

Note: The Texas Department of Public Safety (DPS) has established a goal set by the Texas 
Legislature for all local law enforcement agencies to implement and report crime statistics data 
by using the requirements of the National Incident-Based Reporting System (NIBRS) no later than 
September 1, 2019. Additionally, the Federal Bureau of Investigations (FBI) will collect required 
crime statistics solely through the NIBRS starting January 1, 2021. Due to these upcoming state 
and federal deadlines, grantees are advised that eligibility for future grant funding may be tied to 
compliance with NIBRS. Financial grant assistance for transitioning to NIBRS may be available for 
your jurisdiction from the Criminal Justice Division (CJD).  

3. Local units of government, including cities, counties and other general purpose political 
subdivisions, as appropriate, and institutions of higher education that operate a law enforcement 
agency, must comply with all aspects of the programs and procedures utilized by the U.S. 
Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) to: (1) notify DHS of all information requested by DHS 
related to illegal aliens in Agency’s custody; and (2) detain such illegal aliens in accordance with 
requests by DHS. Additionally, counties and municipalities may NOT have in effect, purport to 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/purchasing/grant-management/
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl
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have in effect, or make themselves subject to or bound by, any law, rule, policy, or practice 
(written or unwritten) that would: (1) require or authorize the public disclosure of federal law 
enforcement information in order to conceal, harbor, or shield from detection fugitives from 
justice or aliens illegally in the United States; or (2) impede federal officers from exercising 
authority under 8 U.S.C. § 1226(a), § 1226(c), § 1231(a), § 1357(a), § 1366(1), or § 1366(3). Lastly, 
eligible applicants must comply with all provisions, policies, and penalties found in Chapter 752, 
Subchapter C of the Texas Government Code. 

Each local unit of government, and institution of higher education that operates a law 
enforcement agency, must download, complete and then upload into eGrants the CEO/Law 
Enforcement Certifications and Assurances Form certifying compliance with federal and state 
immigration enforcement requirements. This Form is required for each application submitted to 
OOG and is active until August 31, 2021 or the end of the grant period, whichever is later.  

4. Eligible applicants must have a DUNS (Data Universal Numbering System) number assigned to its 
agency (to request a DUNS number, go to 
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/displayHomePage.do). 

5. Eligible applicants must be registered in the federal System for Award Management (SAM) 
database located at https://sam.gov/.   

Failure to comply with program eligibility requirements may cause funds to be withheld and/or 
suspension or termination of grant funds. 

Prohibitions 

Grant funds may not be used to support the unallowable costs listed in the Guide to Grants or any of the 
following unallowable costs: 

1. inherently religious activities such as prayer, worship, religious instruction, or proselytization;  

2. lobbying;  

3. any portion of the salary of, or any other compensation for, an elected or appointed government 
official;  

4. vehicles or equipment for government agencies that are for general agency use;  

5. weapons, ammunition, tasers, or explosives;  

6. admission fees or tickets to any amusement park, recreational activity or sporting event;  

7. promotional gifts;  

8. food, meals, beverages, or other refreshments, except for eligible per diem associated with 
grant-related travel or where pre-approved for working events;  

9. membership dues for individuals;  

10. any expense or service that is readily available at no cost to the grant project;  

11. any use of grant funds to replace (supplant) funds that have been budgeted for the same 
purpose through non-grant sources; 

12. fundraising;  

13. construction;  

14. medical services;  

15. legal services for adult offenders; and  

16. any other prohibition imposed by federal, state, or local law.  

https://egrants.gov.texas.gov/fundopp.aspx?name=CEO-LE_Cert-Assurances_Form-Blank.pdf&type=2
https://egrants.gov.texas.gov/fundopp.aspx?name=CEO-LE_Cert-Assurances_Form-Blank.pdf&type=2
http://fedgov.dnb.com/webform/displayHomePage.do
https://sam.gov/
https://egrants.gov.texas.gov/filedirectory/2018%20Guide_to_Grants.pdf
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Selection Process 

Application Screening: HSGD will screen all applications to ensure that they meet the requirements 
included in the funding announcement.  Applications will be reviewed by HSGD staff or a review group 
selected by the Executive Director.  HSGD will make all final funding decisions as described below.  

Merit Review: Requests for funding in a grant application will be compared to funding requests 
previously reviewed and approved by the BPU Executive Committee and the full BPU Board. 

Preferences: Preference will be given to specialized prosecutors to reduce backlogs by supporting and 
enhancing prosecutorial services that focus on rapidly addressing specific violations of the law. 

Final Decisions – All Projects: The Executive Director will consider BPU Board recommendations along 
with other factors and make all final funding decisions. Other factors may include cost effectiveness, 
overall funds availability, HSGD or state government priorities and strategies, legislative directives, need, 
geographic distribution, balance of focuses and approaches, or other relevant factors. 

HSGD may not fund all applications or may only award part of the amount requested. In the event that 
funding requests exceed available funds, HSGD may revise projects to address a more limited focus. 

Contact Information 

For more information, contact the eGrants help desk at eGrants@gov.texas.gov or (512) 463-1919. 

mailto:eGrants@gov.texas.gov
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STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF MCLENNAN 

ORDER AUTHORIZING MEMORIAL DAY FIREWORKS SALES 

WHEREAS, the Commissioners Court of McLennan County is authorized under Occupations 
Code Section 2154.202(h), to issue an order allowing retail fireworks permit holders to sell 
fireworks to the public in celebration of Memorial Day; and 

WHEREAS, on the _____ day of __________, 2020, the Commissioners Court of McLennan 
County has determined that conditions are favorable to issue such an Order; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Commissioners Court of McLennan County adopts this Order 
authorizing the sale of fireworks to the public by retail fireworks permit holders during the 
Memorial Day period beginning May 20, 2020 and ending at midnight May 25, 2019, subject to 
the following restrictions: 

a. This order expires on the date the Texas Fire Service determines drought conditions exist
in the county or midnight, May 25, 2020, whichever is earlier

Approved this the _____ day of ________________, 2020, by the McLennan County 
Commissioners 

______________________________ 
County Judge Scott M. Felton 
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Heather Travers 

Director 

Health Services 

April 27, 2020 

McLennan County 

Indigent Health Care 

Program 

Re: Request from Lakeshore Funeral Home for a temporary Pauper Policy to expedite 
COVID-19 diseased decedents. 

To the Honorable Commissioners Comi 

Due to concerns with holding COVID-19 diseased remains within the funeral home it has been 
requested that a temporary policy be enacted to expedite the pauper process. This process would 
only impact cremation dispositions presumed to be unable or unwilling to control the disposition. 

Current policy is as follows: McLennan County Pauper Cremation Policy with special attention 

to page two, conclusion of Section 1.05 

ff an eligible person fails to make final arrangements for the disposition of the decedent's body 
b~fore the earlier of 6 days, after being notified or 10 days after the decedents death, the 

person(s) is presumed to be unable or unwilling to control the disposition. 

This policy follows current statute in Health and Safety Code Sec. 711.002 (a-1) which prevents 

expedition of cremation. 

Current Remedies: 

24 hour on-call during weekends beginning 6:00 pm Thursday and ending 7:00 am Monday. 
This serves to expedite and accelerate the referral process by potentially 3 days with notification 
of next of kin and allows our office to begin identifying and contacting person(s) with the right 

of control. 

Epidemiology Report: 

Per Senior Epidemiology, Vaidehi Shah with Waco-McLennan County Public Health; 

"current knowledge suggests that spread from o living person happens with close contact (i.e., 
within about 6 feet) via respiratory droplets produced when an infected person coughs, sneezes, 
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or to/ks, similar to how influenza and other respiratory pathogens spread. Recent studies 
indicate that people who are infected but do not have symptoms likely also play a role in the 

spread of COVID-19. Although, this route of transmission is not a concern when handling human 

remains or performing postmortem procedures." 

Pi-oposal 

It is recommended that the current on call efforts remain intact to expedite the process along with 
a temporary policy for COVID-19 diseased remains to be buried following unsuccessful attempts 
to notify person(s) entitled to control the disposition at the conclusion of72 hours. 

This policy would shorten the amount of time the funeral home will be required to retain 
COVID-19 diseased remains and stay in compliance with Health and Safety Code Sec. 711.002 
(a- I) as it pe1tains to the uncontrolled disposition of decedents. 

01ic:L_ ~ 
Heather M. Travers 
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April 29, 2020 

Re: Toll Free Number for District Clerk Jury Text Service 

To the Honorable Commissioners Court: 

MessageMedia, is a text messaging service that Commissioners Court approved last year, for use by the 
District Clerk’s office.  Recently they contacted us regarding coming changes that could impact their 
service.  Major cell phone carriers, like Verizon, have begun blocking business messaging via ‘long code’ 
(the standard 10-digit phone numbers). Only ‘short code’ or toll-free numbers will be acceptable.  

In light of this change, we have investigated these options: 
• the ‘short code’ expense was approximately $500/month
• the toll-free number was available under DIR pricing at $0.026/minute

We have opted for the toll-free option as it is more cost-effective and should actually not incur any 
additional charges to the County.  This number is intended to only be used as a routing reference for 
MessageMedia and will assume the SMS (short message service) functions, for this service that is 
already paid for. It is not the District Clerk’s intent to publish this number for voice calls, which would be 
the only potential charge.  

MessageMedia requires receipt of an authorization form that identifies ownership of the toll-free number 
before they can proceed with it’s use.  Jon Gimble is identified as the account holder and would need to 
authorize this change request. 

I am seeking approval from Commissioners Court to proceed with utilizing the toll-free number and 
submitting this authorization to MessageMedia.  

Respectfully, 

Lisa Fetsch 

       LISA FETSCH 

         DIRECTOR 
 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 
         MCLENNAN COUNTY 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT   

    500 COLUMBUS 
AVENUE     WACO, TEXAS 76701-1388 

(254)757-5164
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Hosted SMS Letter of Authorization (LOA) 
 
1. Customer Name (“You” or “Your”) should appear exactly as it does on your telephone bill: 
 
First Name  Last Name  
Jon Gimble 
Business Name (if the service is in your company’s name) 
McLennan County District Clerk 

 
 
2. Service Address on file with your current carrier (Please note, this must be a physical location and can 
not be a PO Box): 
 
Address 
501 Washington Ave, Suite 300 Annex 
City State/Province Zip/Postal Code 
Waco Tx 76701 

 
 
3. List all the Telephone Number(s) which you authorize MessageMedia USA Inc. to SMS-enable. 
 
 
Phone Number* Service Provider 
(       )  *** to be determined AT&T 
(       )  
(       )  
(       )  

*If you have more than 4 numbers, please list on an extra page 
 
By signing below, You verify that You are, the above-named service customer, authorized to change the 
primary carrier(s) for the telephone number(s) listed, and at least 18 years of age. The name and address 
You have provided is the name and address on record with Your local telephone company for each telephone 
number listed. You authorize MessageMedia or its designated agent to act on Your behalf and SMS-enable 
Your landline or toll free phone number(s) listed in this LOA, and to obtain any information MessageMedia 
USA Inc. deems necessary to make the carrier change(s), including, for example, an inventory of telephone 
lines billed to the telephone number(s), carrier or customer identifying information, billing addresses, and 
Your credit history. You represent and warrant that You have full authority and approval to use the telephone 
number(s) in conjunction with the services provided by MessageMedia USA Inc. and that Your use of such 
telephone number(s) is not in violation of any third party licenses, terms, conditions, laws, rules and/or 
regulations respecting the use of such telephone number(s), including any company or workplace policies 
regarding the use of such telephone number(s) 
 
 
Authorized Signature: Printed Name: Date:    
 
 
_____________________ _____________________ ______________ 



From: TACRCS < TACRCS@county.org> 
Date: April 27, 2020 at 12:09:15 PM CDT 
To: " smfelton@co.mclennan.tx.us" < smfelton@co.mclennan.tx.us> 
Subject: McLennan County - Funding Info for 2020 TAC RMP Employee Safety Equipment 
Program-Road & Bridge/Building Maintenance 

The TAC Risk Management Pool (TAC RMP) Board continues to support its members as 
they make counties a safer place to work with the 2020 TAC RMP Employee Safety 
Equipment Program.  

The TAC RMP Employee Safety Equipment Program provides funds to qualified members 
of the TAC RMP Workers’ Compensation (WC) Program to select preapproved safety 
equipment available in an online store for Road & Bridge and Building Maintenance (R&B). 

The comprehensive selection available includes personal protective equipment to safety-
related tools and equipment.  

The store will be open May 1 - July 31, 2020, and will be hosted by Bullchase, a member of 
Grainger’s Distributor Alliance program which was developed to help support small and 
local historically underutilized business (HUB) initiatives. Bullchase provides the same 
contract pricing through Grainger’s BuyBoard contracts.   

Each member has a predetermined spending limit in the store based on their county’s 
employee count in each of the following WC Class Codes:  

 5506 Road Employees-Paving, Repaving 
 9014 Building Maintenance and Janitors  

The chart below details your county’s contact for each store, their login email and password, 
and the spending amount available. Log in to the store from www.Bullchase.com  

Road & Bridge and 
Building 

Maintenance Contact 

Spending 
Amount 

Pool Coordinator:  
Hon. Scott M. Felton $10,240.30 

We’ve attached a FAQ to answer common questions you may have about the program and a 
press release for your convenience. We will also present a webinar at 9 a.m. on May 7th to 
walk you through the TAC RMP Safety Equipment Store and answer your questions.  
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Physical addresses are required for delivery via UPS. Please verify the address below is 
correct and where you will receive delivery of your selected items. If this address is 
incorrect, please reply to this email with the correct address.  
   

Pool Coordinator’s  
Physical Receiving Address  

501 Washington Avenue  
Waco, TX 76703-1728  

   
We are excited about this program and hope you are too. We appreciate and thank you for 
your continued participation in the TAC Risk Management Pool and your commitment to 
safety.  
   
If you have any questions, please contact Risk Control Services at tacrcs@county.org or (800) 
456-5974.  
   
Sincerely,  

  
 

mailto:tacrcs@county.org


 

 

 
2020 TAC RMP Employee Safety Equipment Program 

Frequently Asked Questions 

 
WHAT IS THE 2020 TAC RMP EMPLOYEE SAFETY EQUIPMENT PROGRAM? 
Approved by the TAC RMP Board, the program allows qualified TAC RMP Workers’ Compensation (WC) Program 
participants to select and purchase personal safety equipment through a customized online storefront.  
  
WHY IS TAC RMP OFFERING THIS PROGRAM? 
TAC RMP is dedicated to eliminating accidents in the workplace, protecting employees and reducing claims for its 
members. 

 
WILL YOU OFFER A WEBINAR TO TEACH ME HOW TO ACCESS THE STORES? 
Yes! We will present a one-hour hour webinar at 9 a.m. on Thursday, May 7. Registration for the webinar is 
here.   

 
WHERE DO I LOG IN TO THE TAC RMP SAFETY EQUIPMENT STORE? 
To login to the Road & Bridge TAC RMP Safety Equipment Stores start here: www.Bullchase.com. 

 
WHO HAS THE LOGIN INFORMATION FOR MY COUNTY? 
We sent your Pool oordinator the login information via email The county judge and commissioners were copied on the 
communication. 

 
WHO IS ALLOWED TO MAKE THE PURCHASES? 
The Pool Coordinator assigned to your county may make selections through the R&B Store. 

 
CAN WE DESIGNATE SOMEONE ELSE TO MAKE PURCHASES? 
Yes, the Pool Coordinator may allow another person from your county to make purchases by sharing login 
information. There is only one login per county. Please contact Bullchase directly at (888) 558-2855 or 
jennifer@bullchase.com for login assistance. 

 
WHEN WILL I GET TO SHOP? 
The TAC RMP R&B Store will be open for shopping from May 1-July 31, 2020.  

 
WE ONLY PURCHASE EQUIPMENT THROUGH A BUYBOARD VENDOR. CAN WE USE THE STORE? 
Yes. Bullchase/Grainger is a BuyBoard cooperative purchasing vendor. 

 
WHAT IS MY SPENDING LIMIT? 
Your Pool Coordinator received an email with the allotted spending limit for each store. 

 
 
 

https://tacmeeting.webex.com/tacmeeting/onstage/g.php?MTID=e2616b8eff2fa26382d90fddebb5144b8
http://www.bullchase.com/
mailto:jennifer@bullchase.com


 

 
HOW WAS MY SPENDING LIMIT DETERMINED? 
Amounts were determined based on (1) the total amount of funds approved by the TAC RMP Board for this program, and 
(2) the number of employees in certain WC Class Codes. 

 
WHAT WC CLASS CODES WERE USED? 
Class Codes were selected based on the top loss producing class codes for the Pool over the past four years with a higher 
than average cost per claim: 

 
• 5506 Road Employees-Paving, Repaving 
• 9014 Building Maintenance and Janitors  

 
WHAT IF I GO OVER MY SPENDING LIMIT? 
The store will not allow you to exceed your spending limit. However, if you would like to purchase additional items or 
add to the TAC RMP funds with a county payment, please contact Bullchase directly at (888) 558-2855 or 
jennifer@bullchase.com. 

 
WHAT IF I AM UNDER MY SPENDING LIMIT? 
All funds must be used in 2020. The store includes low-cost items, so please keep shopping until you have hit your limit. 

 
CAN OUR COUNTY SUPPLEMENT ITS SPENDING LIMIT WITH OUR OWN FUNDS? 
Yes. Please contact Bullchase directly at (888) 558-2855 or jennifer@bullchase.com. 

 
MY COUNTY DOESN’T WANT TO PARTICIPATE. HOW DO I OPT OUT? 
Please email us at tacrcs@county.org so we can assist you with opting out. 

 
IF ANOTHER COUNTY CHOOSES NOT TO PARTICIPATE, CAN I HAVE THEIR FUNDS? 
No, the TAC RMP Employee Safety Equipment Program amounts are specific to each member based on the number of 
employees in certain WC Class Codes. 

 
IF WE CHOOSE NOT TO PARTICIPATE, CAN WE GET CASH? 
No, the TAC RMP Employee Safety Equipment Program was created specifically to address employee safety through the 
purchase of safety equipment through these online stores. 

 
CAN I PURCHASE DIRECTLY FROM GRAINGER AND USE MY PROGRAM FUNDS? 
Items must be purchased through the TAC RMP store to utilize the program funds. If you purchase directly from 
Grainger, you will be responsible for the payment and the program will not be able to reimburse you for the purchase. 
 
WHAT ITEMS ARE AVAILABLE? 
Please check out the store! TAC Risk Management Services staff and Bullchase worked together to develop a wide variety 
of employee safety equipment selections ranging from gloves to eye-wash stations. 

 
WHAT IF A STORE DOESN’T HAVE WHAT I NEED? 
The store is stocked with a wide variety of employee safety equipment items recommend by TAC Risk Control Services 
and Bullchase. If you don’t find an item you are looking for, please contact Bullchase directly at (888) 558-2855 or 
jennifer@bullchase.com. 
 

Note: Due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, certain items may be unavailable for purchase through the store 
despite being listed on inventory. 

mailto:jennifer@bullchase.com
mailto:jennifer@bullchase.com
mailto:rcs@county.org
mailto:jennifer@bullchase.com


 

 
WHAT IF I DON’T LIKE THE ITEMS I RECEIVE? 
You may exchange any damaged, defective or incorrect items directly to Bullchase for the right product. 

 
CAN I RETURN MY ITEMS FOR CASH? 
No, items can only be exchanged for credit for additional purchases. 

 
IS COUNTY-SPECIFIC LOGO BRANDING OFFERED? 
Due to the large scope of this program, we are unable to offer county-specific branding. 

 
WHAT IF WE MISS THE DEADLINE FOR ORDERING? 
You have until July 31, 2020, to complete your shopping. After that date, the stores will be closed. We will send you 
a reminder via email in mid-July. 

 
WHERE WILL MY ITEMS SHIP TO? 
Selected items will be mailed to the physical address listed during the checkout process and were provided to Bullchase 
from our membership database. If the address is incorrect, please contact Bullchase directly at (888) 558-2855 or 
jennifer@bullchase.com. 

 
CAN WE HAVE MORE THAN ONE “SHIP TO” ADDRESS? 
Yes, before placing your order please contact Bullchase directly at (888) 558-2855 or jennifer@bullchase.com to add 
additional shipping locations. 

 
WILL WE HAVE TO PAY FOR SHIPPING OUT OF OUR FUNDS? 
No, there are no tax or shipping costs charged to the county. There are no return shipping costs for returns due to 
damaged, defective or incorrectly delivered items. 

 
WHAT IF WE DO NOT HAVE INTERNET ACCESS? 
Internet access is required to access the stores and place your orders. Please contact Risk Control Services at (800) 
478-8753 or email us at tacrcs@county.org if you have more questions or need assistance. 

 
HAVE ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS? 

 
Please contact Risk Control Services at (800) 478-8753 or email us at tacrcs@county.org if you have more questions or need 
assistance. You may also contact Bullchase directly at (888) 558-2855 or jennifer@bullchase.com. 

mailto:jennifer@bullchase.com
mailto:jennifer@bullchase.com
mailto:tacrcs@county.org
mailto:tacrcs@county.org
mailto:jennifer@bullchase.com


Dustin Chapman
McLennan County, Texas
501 Washington Avenue
Attn: County Judge's Office Room 214
Waco, TX  76701

April 30, 2020
Project No: 18.4624.01
Invoice No: 0069583

McLennan Co Venue Ph 2
Professional Services from March 1, 2020 to April 30, 2020
Fee

Billing Phase Fee
Percent

Complete Earned
Previous Fee

Billing
Current Fee

Billing

Design Development 
Documents

317,000.00 100.00 317,000.00 317,000.00 0.00

Construction Documents 
(Site Package)

640,000.00 100.00 640,000.00 640,000.00 0.00

Bidding  (Site Package) 78,000.00 100.00 78,000.00 78,000.00 0.00
Construction 
Administration

715,000.00 60.00 429,000.00 357,500.00 71,500.00

Total Fee 1,750,000.00 1,464,000.00 1,392,500.00 71,500.00

Total Fee 71,500.00

$71,500.00Total this Invoice

Authorized By: Date:

John Fickel

4800 Main St, Ste. 300, KCMO 64112     |     T +1 816 221 1500     |     F + 1 816 221 1578

4.30.2020
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Invoice

Date

4/17/2020

Invoice #

11691

Bill To

McLennan County
P. O. Box 648
Waco, TX 76703

P.O. No. Terms

Net 30

Thank you for your business.
Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

2000 South 15th Street
Waco, TX 76706

254-235-1048
254-235-1625 FAX

Description Qty Rate Amount

HOT Expo
3/16/2020 Technician 2 57.00 114.00
Vehicle Charge 1 42.00 42.00
Report Preparation 1 20.00 20.00

3/17/2020 Technician 1.5 57.00 85.50
Overtime Technician 2.5 85.50 213.75
Concrete Cylinders 15 24.00 360.00
Vehicle Charge 1 42.00 42.00
Report Preparation 3 20.00 60.00

3/18/2020 Cylinder Pickup Only 1 57.00 57.00
Vehicle Charge 1 42.00 42.00

3/26/2020 Overtime Technician 3.5 85.50 299.25
Concrete Cylinders 10 24.00 240.00
Vehicle Charge 1 42.00 42.00
Report Preparation 2 20.00 40.00

3/30/2020 Technician 2 57.00 114.00
Vehicle Charge 1 42.00 42.00
Report Preparation 1 20.00 20.00

3/31/2020 Overtime Technician 3 85.50 256.50
Concrete Cylinders 15 24.00 360.00
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Invoice

Date

4/17/2020

Invoice #

11691

Bill To

McLennan County
P. O. Box 648
Waco, TX 76703

P.O. No. Terms

Net 30

Thank you for your business.
Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

2000 South 15th Street
Waco, TX 76706

254-235-1048
254-235-1625 FAX

Description Qty Rate Amount

Vehicle Charge 1 42.00 42.00
Report Preparation 3 20.00 60.00

4/1/2020 Structural Steel CWI 7 100.00 700.00
Report Preparation 1 20.00 20.00
UT Equipment 1 127.00 127.00
Vehicle Charge 1 138.00 138.00

4/72020 Technician Overtime 3 85.50 256.50
Concrete Cylinders 15 24.00 360.00
Vehicle Charge 1 42.00 42.00
Report Preparation 3 20.00 60.00

4/9/2020Technician 2 57.00 114.00
Vehicle Charge 1 42.00 42.00
Report Preparation 1 20.00 20.00

4/10/2020 Technician 4 57.00 228.00
Concrete Cylinders 15 24.00 360.00
Vehicle Charge 1 42.00 42.00
Report Preparation 3 20.00 60.00

Page 2

$5,121.50

$5,121.50

$0.00
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